Agenda - Children, Young People and Education

Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 1 - Senedd Marc Wyn Jones

Meeting date: Wednesday, 2 Committee Clerk

November 2016 0300 200 6565

Meeting time: 09.00 SeneddCYPE@assembly.wales

09.00 - 09.30 - Informal meeting

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of

interest
(09.30)

2  Scrutiny of Welsh Government draft budget 2017 - 18 - Cabinet

Secretary for Communities and Children
(09.30 - 11.00) (Pages 1 - 74)

Welsh Government

Carl Sargeant AM, Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children
Albert Heaney, Director, Social Services and Integration

Jo-Anne Daniels, Director, Communities and Tackling Poverty
Nigel Brown, Interim Chief Executive, CAFCASS Cymru

3 Paper(s) to note

Welsh Government response to the Committee of Advertising Practice consultation
on introducing restrictions on the non-broadcast advertising of food and soft
drinks to children,

(Pages 75 - 76)

,Ff Cynulliad National
/’ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



Letter to the Chair from NSPCC Cymru

(Pages 77 - 78)
Letter from the Chair to Cabinet Secretary for Education - Education Improvement
Grant: Gypsy, Roma and Traveller, and Minority Ethnic Children

(Pages 79 - 81)
Letter from the Chair to the Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children -
Statutory Advocacy Provision

(Pages 82 - 83)
Correspondence from Council for Wales of Voluntary Youth Services (CWVYY) in
relation to the Youth Work Inquiry

(Pages 84 - 117)

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42(ix) to resolve to exclude the

public from the meeting for the remainder of the meeting
(11.00)

5 Scrutiny of Welsh Government draft budget 2016-17 - wash-up
(11.00-11.20)

6 Inquiry into Youth Work - Consideration of key issues paper
(11.20 - 11.40) (Pages 118 - 143)

7 Consideration of the Legislative Consent Memorandum on the

Children and Social Work Bill
11.40 - 12.00 (Pages 144 - 146)

8 Diamond Review: draft letter to Cabinet Secretary for Education
(12.00 - 12.20) (Pages 147 - 151)



Agenda Item 2

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru | National Assembly for Wales
Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg | Children, Young People and
Education

Committee

CYPE(5)-09-16 — Papur | Paper 1

Ymateb gan : Llywodraeth Cymru
Response from : Welsh Government

Title: Evidence paper for Draft Budget Allocations 2017-18 —
Children & Communities MEG.

1. Introduction

This paper provides comments and information to the Committee regarding the
Communities and Children (C&C) portfolio and future programme budget
proposals outlined within the Draft Budget which was laid on 18 October 2016.
As requested by the Committee, Annex A provides a breakdown of the Draft
Budget figures for the C&C Major Expenditure Group (MEG) relevant to the
Committee, by Action and by Budget Expenditure Line (BEL).

2. Background

Summary Financial Tables:

C&C MEG 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2017-18
Supp. Baseline Changes | New Plans

Budget Budget Draft

Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000

Resource DEL 357,631 358,468 12,600 371,068
Capital DEL 376,370 328,012 9,693 337,705
DEL Baseline 734,001 686,480 22,293 708,773

Within the overall C&C MEG, the main elements for the Committee are Children,
Young People and Families. The budgets for those elements are summarised in
the table below.

Paclk Page 1



2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2017-18

Supp. Baseline Changes | New Plans

Budget Budget Draft

Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000

Resource DEL 172,453 172,558 8,500 181,058
Capital DEL 3,000 0 1,260 1,260
DEL Baseline 175,453 172,558 9,760 182,318

3. Budget Overview

This is a Budget which has been developed against the backdrop of uncertain
and difficult times. The outcome of the EU referendum will recast our relationship
with the European Union in the long term and there is uncertainty about the
future of important European funding streams and the impact on UK public
finances and the Welsh budget.

We continue to face ongoing cuts to our overall funding from the UK Government
— the influential Institute for Fiscal Studies has commented that “Wales is looking
at an extraordinary 11 or more years of retrenchment in public service
spending...”

This means that, as a Welsh Government and as a National Assembly for Wales,
we face some hard choices as we continue to work to protect our public services
from the worst of these effects and invest in Wales to grow jobs and our
economy, taking our country forward.

The UK Government will publish an Autumn Statement in November. Even
though early statements by the Chancellor of the Exchequer indicate that the
Treasury will no longer be aiming to achieve a surplus by 2020, he has also said
it is not an end to austerity. This is why, in our Draft Budget, we have decided to
publish revenue spending plans for 2017-18 only and capital plans for four years,
providing certainty for longer-term investments.

We are now in the second year of the UK Government’s Spending Review
settlement, which set the Welsh Government’s revenue budget for the period
2016-17 to 2019-20 and the capital budget until 2020-21. Overall, the Welsh
budget will continue to reduce in real terms over the period.

Pack Page 2



The cuts yet to come compound the successive real terms reductions which have
been made since 2010-11. The Spending Review reductions to our settlement
reinforced the UK Government’s squeeze on public spending and commitment to
austerity. Our budget will be 9% lower in real terms by the end of the decade —
this is equivalent to almost £1.5billion less in real terms for public services in
Wales in 2019-20 than in 2010-11.

The Devolved Administrations have urged the UK Government to rethink its
economic and fiscal policy. Working together, we are determined to act to ward
off further austerity policies which may be considered as a consequence of the
referendum result.

The result of the EU referendum has added to the level of uncertainty about
future resources for Wales. Withdrawal from the EU will have an impact on the
availability of resources available to Wales as it benefits from £650m a year from
various European funding streams, including agricultural payments.

We need revenue plans now which support our public services today and our
priorities for the longer term as well as enabling us to prepare for the inevitable
budget reductions over the next few years if austerity continues unabated.

Once we have assessed the impact of the Autumn Statement, we intend to
publish planning assumptions for 2018-19 and 2019-20 in the New Year. Our
decision to publish a one-year revenue budget means we are providing stability
for core services and investing in priorities in the immediate term. This provides a
stable platform from which we can manage the tough financial times ahead in
innovative ways with our partners and stakeholders.

Specific to my portfolio, | propose merging three of the current SPAs (Children,
Young People and Families; Supporting Communities and People and CAFCASS
Cymru) into one, called ‘Enabling Children and Communities’. Within the new
SPA, there will be three Actions to cover Supporting Children, Prevention and
Early Intervention and Third Sector/Financial Inclusion. The main difference is
that the Prevention and Early Intervention Action will combine the revenue
budgets for Flying Start, Families First and Communities First. It is not my
intention to merge these programmes. | have indicated that some local
authorities may be able to benefit from increased financial freedoms and
flexibilities where this would improve service delivery. As indicated in my recent
oral statement | am minded to phase out the Communities First programme and
we are currently engaging with communities on the implications of this. This

Pac3k Page 3



proposed Action shows a reduction of £1.15million, the amount my portfolio has
contributed to the austerity cuts in 2017-18.

An integrated, long-term approach to capital funding

In this budget we have the opportunity to drive investment in the economy, make
improvements in vital public services and start to deliver the key priorities set out
in Taking Wales Forward.

In previous years we have mainly had traditional capital and financial transaction
funding at our disposal to fund public infrastructure projects — now new borrowing
powers and more innovative finance models are open to Wales as the level of
available public capital continues to decline.

We will set a four-year capital budget, matching the capital settlement set out in
the 2015 UK Spending Review, and consists of a firm budget for 2017-18 and
indicative allocations for the subsequent three years. It is important we provide
as much transparency and certainty to our key stakeholders and delivery
partners as we can to deliver capital investments and so we have concluded that
a long-term capital approach is the right decision.

Total available capital funding

The budget sets out plans for £6.9billion of capital funding, which is enhanced
by our plans for £1.5billion of investment through our innovative finance
investment programmes. We will make full use of the capital borrowing powers
provided by the Wales Act 2014. This source of funding, included within our
overall capital allocation, gives a £395m boost to our four-year Capital DEL
budgets.

Given the many factors that impact on the timing and costs of strategic
infrastructure projects, access to borrowed funds will be carefully considered
during each budget period and used for agreed strategic investment priorities.
Our strategic infrastructure plans and decisions are shaped by the commitments
in Taking Wales Forward and the investment priorities in the Wales Infrastructure
Investment Plan.

The timing of allocations

As we are setting out a four-year plan, we are supporting our strategic
commitments through a combination of firm allocations for 2017-18, indicative

Pack Pa?e 4



allocations for the subsequent three years, and specific ear-marking of capital
reserves. This approach provides flexibility to respond as proposals develop and
funding requirements are established.

Reserves

Our approach will maximise allocations to portfolios while retaining a prudent
level of central reserves as a contingency for unforeseen pressures. Whilst this
principle applies equally to our revenue and capital budgets, we are increasing
capital reserves further ensuring that sufficient central funds are available to
support our priority commitments as they progress over the Assembly term.

Therefore, our resource reserves for 2017-18 are 1.7 per cent of the Resource
DEL and Capital Reserves are 7.1 per cent of the Capital DEL, rising to between
30 and 34 per cent in subsequent three years. We are satisfied that these levels
of reserves will enable us to manage risks and respond to unforeseen pressures,
while giving individual Cabinet Secretaries funding certainty to begin planning
and delivering the key commitments set out in Taking Wales Forward.

4. Programme for Government

This is a Budget to take Wales forward, to provide stability for our core services
and to make progress in implementing our ambitious Programme for Government
Taking Wales Forward 2016-21
http://gov.wales/docs/strateqies/160920-taking-wales-forward-en.pdf .

Taking Wales Forward sets out how this government will deliver more and better
jobs through a stronger, fairer economy, improve and reform public services and
build a united, connected and sustainable Wales and the development of four
Cross cross-cutting strategies:

e Prosperous and secure

e Healthy and active

e Ambitious and learning

e United and connected

This government will work in partnership with others to tackle the challenges and
issues facing Wales and grasp the opportunities as we continue to work together

to create a strong and confident country.

We are working on four cross-cutting strategies: Prosperous and Secure;
Ambitious and Learning; Healthy and Active; and United and Connected. These

Pac5k Page 5


http://gov.wales/docs/strategies/160920-taking-wales-forward-en.pdf

will set out in more detail the interdependent actions we will take to give everyone
in Wales the opportunity to flourish at every stage of their lives.

They will support Taking Wales Forward and enable us to use all the levers
available to us to have the greatest impact and deliver the promise of the Future
Generations Act. These interlinked strategies will ensure that public services are
integrated, efficient and available to support and enrich people’s lives when and
where they need them.

We are committed to providing an environment that encourages innovative
delivery in the current environment. Collaboration, partnership and efficiency
across the public services are vitally important, as are challenging ourselves and
our partners to use our collective resources to maximise the benefits of our
collective endeavours. The Future Generations Act gives us, and other public
bodies, a strong foundation to build on.

In working with my Cabinet colleagues we have discussed common areas of
interest, which whilst not having a budgetary implication will reflect our
commitment to work in collaboration to strengthen the delivery of our
commitments. For example we are aligning Flying Start with the Health Child
Wales programme to ensure a continuum of support for those children and
families who moved between Flying Start areas and non Flying Start areas and
that the interventions provided and public health messages are consistent. In the
development of perinatal mental health services we will work in collaboration to
develop common pathways and integrated services.

5. Key questions
Impact Assessments

The Equality Act 2010 aims to ensure public authorities consider how they can
positively contribute to a fairer society in their day-to-day activities through paying
due regard to eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing equality of
opportunity and fostering good relations.

We have again decided to complete an Integrated Impact Assessment of the
Welsh Government Draft Budget, which takes into account children’s rights
alongside impacts on equality, Welsh language and socio-economic
disadvantage. Our approach was informed by recommendations from a range of
stakeholders including the Assembly Committees and the EHRC. The SIIA
highlights where such impacts were identified.

Pack Page 6



An integrated assessment provides a more comprehensive assessment of the
overall impact of spending decisions. This approach reflects our wider
understanding of the sustainability of our decisions and the aims and objectives
set out in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act, including the focus
on prevention, collaboration and long-termism.

We as a Government are responsible for proposing and implementing policy and
laws which would apply in Wales and which aim to improve the lives of everyone
in Wales. In doing so, we are absolutely committed to listening to the views of the
people of Wales, including children and young people. To enable this to happen,
| am providing a total of £1.8 million over 3 years to Children in Wales to create
structures to enable children and young people to have their opinions heard and
influence our work. Their participation model, called Young Wales, aims to reach
thousands of children and young people, including those who may be
marginalised, shy, poor, excluded or in challenging circumstances

All of our grant award letters set out that recipients; “must apply a policy of equal
opportunities as employers, as users of volunteers, and as providers of services,
regardless of race, gender/gender identification, sexual orientation, religion and
belief, age or any disability.”

There are no significant changes to either children’s rights or equalities as a
result of this budget. We will ensure our Families First programme will continue
to promote the development of more effective services for families with a
disability, by providing ring-fenced funding for specific disability services, as well
as encouraging disability concerns to be embedded in mainstream service
delivery.

The funding we provide to the Children’s Commissioner enables the organisation
to make a significant contribution to developing policy in relation to equalities.
These benefits include:
e improved health of children, leading to a healthier Wales,
e better equality for children, leading to a more equal Wales,
e improved physical environments of children, leading to a more globally
responsible Wales, and
e children’s rights to an identity, leading to a Wales of more cohesive
communities and thriving Welsh language.

Children’s Rights Impact Assessments have been conducted for many areas
within the Communities and Children Portfolio including:

Pac7k Page 7



e The extension of regulations and changes to the Childcare Regulation
Framework. Refer to Annex B1.

e The Play Wales Strategic Policy grant ends 31.09.2017 but officials are
considering arrangements for further funding subsequent to this. The CRIA is
included at Annex B2.

e To underpin the Welsh Government’s Child Poverty Strategy published in
2015 — see Annex B3. The impacts of budget changes on tackling poverty
were considered more widely as part of the Welsh Government’s integrated
iImpact assessment of the 2017/18 budget.

¢ In relation to the Children and Families Delivery Grant within the Families First
Budget. There were no changes to allocations as a result of the assessments.

The CRIA is at Annex B4.

¢ In relation to the Positive Parenting Campaign. This was funded under the
Families First BEL. There were no changes to allocations as a result of the
assessments. Refer to Annex B5 for a copy of the CRIA.

e As part of CAFCASS Cymru’s work on Children’s participation. The CRIA is
available at:
http://gov.wales/docs/cafcass/publications/260216CRIA YourVoice.pdf

Prevention

Prevention and early intervention are at the forefront of my mind. My role as
Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children will be focussed on achieving
my priorities of wellbeing and economic renewal both within the context of my
portfolio responsibilities and working with Cabinet colleagues across
Government.

The evidence is clear that the roots of wellbeing and economic prosperity lie in
early childhood. The earliest years are vital: early life experiences can have a
profound impact on a child’s development and influence behaviours in
adolescence and adulthood. So we must take a long term view and invest in
preventative services which promote individual and family resilience.

Pack Page 8


http://gov.wales/docs/cafcass/publications/260216CRIA_YourVoice.pdf

I am immensely proud of the investment that we have made in Flying Start —
supporting over a quarter of all children under 4 years of age in Wales. | will
maintain my commitment to Flying Start and seek to extend its reach through
ensuring practice from Flying Start informs, the development of and practice in,
mainstream services. There are opportunities through working in partnership
with Public Health Wales and the WLGA on the first 1000 days and as part of the
development of our universal Healthy Child Wales Programme.

One of the greatest threats to children’s wellbeing and to their future prosperity
comes from Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs). These adverse
experiences, such as physical and verbal abuse or being in a household where
there is domestic violence, substance misuse, parental separation or mental
illness, negatively impact on a child’s development and affect long term
outcomes.

Exposure to ACEs, particularly multiple ACEs can affect young people’s
engagement with education, influence whether they adopt health harming
behaviours and their propensity to criminal behaviour. All of these factors in turn
reduce wellbeing and affect economic outcomes — the likelihood of being in
secure employment.

So | will focus the work of my portfolio on addressing the incidence of ACEs, by
seeking to prevent them where we can. At the same time we will work to reduce
their impact on children’s life chances in order to improve wellbeing and
economic prosperity. | am in no doubt this is a long term challenge and the
benefits of this approach are equally long term. It is the right approach if we want
to achieve the intergenerational benefits of breaking the cycle.

There is a wealth of evidence concerning the positive role of childcare in
influencing parental employment, and the role of both good quality childcare and
play in children’s development, ensuring that they have a good start in life. There
is much evidence to show that early intervention has long term benefits (Gunnar
& Davis (2003); Edwards et al (2009); Luther et al (2000), cited in Save the
Children’s Early Intervention Review 2010).

The Children’s Commissioner’s role in scrutinising us in government and
ensuring that legislation, policies and decisions provide the best possible
outcomes for children, young people and their families again very much focuses
on preventative measures. Likewise, the funding allocations | have made for
Advocacy and Supporting Children’s Rights have a strong focus on preventative
spend — informing, reassuring and empowering children to make positive

Pacgk Page 9



changes in their lives, and resolving issues without the need for undue and
stressful escalation.

Welsh Language

All programme publications and promotional materials we produce are printed
bilingually and all services to families are provided bilingually. All of our social
media communications are posted bilingually and all messages to Programme
staff are sent in accordance with their specified language preference. We ensure
Welsh language provision is an integral element of the Flying Start and Families
First programmes with a requirement on local authorities to respond to parental
choice, and to deliver Welsh-medium provision where required. Our strategic
guidance makes it clear that local authorities must put in place arrangements to
meet the preference of parents for Welsh medium and/or bilingual provision.

We have developed a specific project to promote the Welsh Language within the
Flying Start programme this year. In addition, our Childcare activities include
support for organisations such as Mudiad Meithrin and the CWLWM consortium
which provide Welsh Medium childcare. Our enhanced childcare offer will work
to ensure that there is adequate Welsh Language Provision, for those requesting
it. In line with the Welsh Language Standard requirements, our PaCE
programme asks each of its participants what their preferred language would be
for receiving services. These services are then delivered to the individual
according to their preference.

Value for Money

Evaluation takes place as part of normal grant management and project
management activities. Where | directly fund Third Sector organisations, my
officials will undertake due diligence checks to advise on an organisation’s
financial viability, its governance and Director history before a grant is awarded
and then regularly review during the life of the project before payments are made.
In relation to funding to local authorities, | will continue to collect data from them
to monitor performance, assess outcomes and drive the future improvement and
delivery including value for money.

EU Referendum Result
There are no immediate direct effects of the decision to leave the European

Union. Our core programmes such as Flying Start are not dependant on EU
funding. However, our Flying Start Programme provides £3.2million of match

Pack Page 10
10



funding to two ESF programmes which support employment and prosperity.
These are the Parents, Childcare and Employment (PaCE) project and Progress
for Success (PfS) project. We will ensure the impact of leaving the European
Union will be carefully monitored and discussions held to limit the impact. It is my
intention to carry out an impact assessment of the EU Referendum result on
children and young people as the impacts of the result become clearer.

5 Ways of Working

Across the whole MEG, but also in the creation of the new Prevention and Early
Intervention Action, the Sustainable Development Principle is a fundamental part
of how | want to develop and implement my programmes. These programmes
seek to ensure the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability
of future generations to meet their own needs. The principle is made up of five
key ways of working which apply to this portfolio as follows:

e Collaboration — recognising that many of the solutions to the ‘sustainability’
challenges Wales faces cannot be solved by one organisation. Multi-agency
working is now recognised as essential and not optional. Our Flying Start and
Families First Programmes have improved the way agencies work together to
support our most vulnerable families through joint commissioning of services
and Team around the Family approaches to service delivery. | will also
continue to pursue opportunities for collaboration across Government and
with other partners, including the third sector, in order that programmes and
services reach into the communities that most need them. CAFCASS will
strengthen the partnerships with local authorities and contribute to improving
services and outcomes for children and families by sharing data and
information more effectively. With Looked after Children, the protection of
individuals and improvement in well-being outcomes will be achieved through
collaboration via multi-agency working and communities.

¢ Integration — within the Flying Start, Families First and Communities First
programmes local authorities are expected to involve other relevant
programmes and organisations including Local Health Boards, and voluntary
and private sectors in drawing up their plans ensuring that needs assessment
and delivery are jointly managed and, where appropriate, there is a seamless
progression for children between different interventions and programmes.
CAFCASS will develop outcome focused performance information to
evidence the impact of our intervention and share it with the wider public
sector to support the improvement of services across Wales.

Pack Page 11
11



Long term — | have taken account of the potential long term impacts of
decisions and balanced this against my short-term needs. This has enabled
me to plan on the basis of recognising challenges before they arise so that |
am able to balance short-term pressures with long-term needs. In particular
the evidence is that, through investing in early years and family support, this
will have greater benefits in the long term. For example, through supporting
practitioners by ensuring they have the tools they need to do their jobs, the
programme on Fostering, Adoption and Looked after Children will help ensure
individuals in Wales will be safeguarded in the long term.

Prevention — seeking to tackle problems at source and earlier, rather than
tackling the consequences of these problems at a later date. Prevention and
early intervention is an approach which not only benefits people and
communities but has the potential to generate long term cost savings. This
approach is at the heart of my tackling poverty programmes, in particular
Families First, and in the approach to tackling the inequalities experienced by
those with protected characteristics. CAFCASS will continue to work with
parents and carers who are involved in private law matters that are before the
family court to support them to come to a mutual agreement on arrangements
that will promote the physical safety and emotional well being of their child.

Involvement— a core tenet of what this portfolio does is recognising the
importance of involving people, especially children, in the decisions that
affect them. Promoting the rights of children can not be achieved without the
involvement and voice of the child heard in decision making about their lives.

Separately, the ‘Communities and Tackling Poverty Programmes Alignment
Project’ has been looking at ways to reduce bureaucracy and increase efficiency
within the main Programmes. The movement of funding for Families First, Flying
Start and Communities First into one BEL from 2017-18 has the potential to
reduce administration costs within the Welsh Government, and also for local
authorities.

Specific areas

Flying Start

The Flying Start programme aims to improve outcomes for children in some of
the most disadvantaged areas across Wales. This is done through providing four
key Flying Start entitlements to children under four years old and their families: 1)
enhanced health visiting; 2) parenting support; 3) support for speech, language

Pack Page 12
12



and communication; and 4) the provision of free, high quality, part-time childcare
for 2-3 year-olds.

The Flying Start grant is not disaggregated into the 4 elements as local
authorities have discretion on how they allocate the grant in order to meet local
needs. As a guide to the proportion of funding utilised to deliver the programme
entitlements, spend across Wales for each element in 2015-16 was as follows:

Element Amount
Childcare £36,134,487
Health Team £24,253,305
Early Language Development £4,120,000
Parenting £11,543,711
Total £76,051,503

At the Wales level in 2015- 16 (the latest year for which information is available)
97% of all requests by parents for childcare in the medium of Welsh were met.
My officials are working with colleagues in the Welsh Language Division
developing a pilot to try to improve the take up of Welsh medium provision in
areas with low numbers of Welsh speakers. | aim to assess the links between the
take up of Flying Start services and parental preference for Welsh Medium
Education.

The take up of the language and play entitlement (now referred to as Speech,
Language and Communication provision) for monitoring purposes continues to
be defined as ‘a course offered to an individual parental figure who attended the
first session’. However, it is important to recognise this entitlement is woven
through activity in the other three entitlements. Every family in a Flying Start area
should have ongoing access to an appropriate language and play group. From
this, a more targeted approach based on assessment and referral can be taken
where there is evidence of additional need. In some local authorities, speech and
language therapists are employed as part of the core Flying Start team. Where
this approach can be linked to evidence of local need and impact on outcomes, it
will be supported by the Welsh Government.

The evidence provided in the 2013 impact evaluation commissioned by the
Welsh Government shows awareness of, referral to and take-up of parenting
programmes and Language and Play was higher amongst parents in the Flying
Start group. Greater engagement with early years services is important for
building the medium and long term outcomes the programme is expected to
deliver. In the recent qualitative evaluation report, published in 2016, parents

Pack Page 13
13



identified a range of improvements in their children’s development. This included
talking and communication, reading and counting, practical issues and behaviour
and attitude. In addition, almost all parents interviewed felt Flying Start had a
positive impact on their families’ overall level of well-being.

Flying Start has been subject to a robust independent programme of evaluation
which considers impact and value for money. Evaluation reports are published on
the Welsh Government Social Research web page. The latest statistical release,
published in July 2016, can be found at:
http://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/flying-start/?lang=en

Both Flying Start and Families First are early intervention programmes informed
by the growing international body of evidence that supports the positive role of
interventions in early years in improving the development of children and young
people and their prospects in adulthood. A report published in 2015 by the Early
Intervention Foundation highlighted the fiscal cost of missed opportunities to
provide early, targeted support to children and young people. The report
concluded “early Intervention is the smart and realistic choice for using ever
scarcer public money”.

Recent qualitative research found that parents whose children had attended
Flying Start childcare felt they had improved social skills and were better
prepared for school. Investment is targeted in the communities with the highest
proportion of households with children aged 0-4 who are on income benefits.

In addition, parents interviewed as part of the qualitative research reported all
anticipated immediate outcomes of the programme. These include the language
development, social and emotional development and cognitive development
outcomes for children. There is also evidence that some parents of children in the
Programme benefit from the opportunities available to learn new skills and
improve their employment prospects.

Value for money of childcare within the Flying Start programme is assessed on
an on-going basis. Costs are compared across local authorities; take up of places
purchased is monitored and childcare budgets are agreed as part of annual work
plans. Welsh Government Account Managers discuss delivery and budget
allocations at regular meetings. Expenditure is agreed and projects assessed on
an on going basis for eligibility with programme objectives and value for money.

A range of activity is currently underway to allow us to build on the findings of the
independent national evaluation of Flying Start. The first strand of work involves

Pack Page 14
14


http://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/flying-start/?lang=en

qualitative research following 72 families on their journey through Flying Start
over three years. The first annual report was published in early 2016. Secondly,
officials are working with the Administrative Data Research Centre for Wales to
utilise existing datasets to monitor and evaluate Flying Start. The research
involves exploring differences in education and health outcomes for those living
in Flying Start and non-Flying Start areas. Current evaluation activity also
includes developing and testing an approach to identify outcomes for Flying Start
children in relation to their level of engagement with the programme. This
includes an exploration of children’s attainment and attendance as they move
through school as well as a range of health outcomes.

Flying Start — Capital - The Flying Start capital funding provided in previous
years has been used to support the expansion of the Flying Start programme and
providing the infrastructure needed to double the number of children benefitting
from the programme from 18,000 to 36,000.This investment has contributed to
developing the ‘social infrastructure’ referred to in the Wales Infrastructure
Investment Plan by working at the heart of our most disadvantaged communities
and improving the well being and life chances of the under 4’s. Flying Start has
provided high quality setting essential to deliver the programme in areas of high
deprivation.

This Flying Start Capital Budget for 2017-18 is £1.2million, which is sufficient to
complete existing projects. Following several years of capital investment all 22
LA areas have an established network of childcare settings. This infrastructure
provides the most tangible legacy for all Flying Start areas and provides the
physical platform from which to sustain activity. Both the nature of Flying Start
settings and the extent of their role as hubs of activity for Flying Start and related
services will influence the likelihood that sustainability will be achieved.

Childcare

The Welsh Government recognises that affordable, available and accessible
childcare enables parents to work, supporting the drive to increase economic
growth, tackle poverty and reduce inequalities. It also provides opportunities and
long-term benefits for our children and improves their life chances. This is why
developing a flexible and quality childcare offer is a top priority as outlined in
Taking Wales Forward.

My commitment to offer working parents of three and four-year-olds free
childcare for 48 weeks of the year is aimed at supporting parents already in work,

Pack Page 15
15



and to help those who want to work or start a business but are currently
constrained by childcare costs.

Work is already underway with partners in local authorities, alongside extensive
engagement with parents and providers, to develop and deliver the offer. In
September | launched the #talkchildcare campaign in September to engage with
parents and providers. There has already been a high level of interest and
responses from parents and providers and | will continue to engage through
social media and face to face over the coming months.

To support us in developing and implementing the offer local authorities were
contacted in August seeking a number of them to become advisory partners and
early adopters. Expressions of interest were received from a large number of
local authorities keen to work with me on the development of the new childcare
offer. 1 will shortly be announcing the local authorities where we will be testing
the offer in the autumn of 2017, to make sure it meets parents’ needs and can be
delivered efficiently and effectively by childcare providers. | will want to test how
the offer works for parents in a variety of contexts, for example, parents of
children with additional needs, parents who want Welsh language provision and
parents who have to travel to work and to their childcare provider.

For 2017-18, £10million of revenue funding has been allocated to test the first
phase of the Offer. In addition, £20milion per annum from 2018-19 has been
included in the Education MEG for investment in childcare settings alongside the
215t Centuries Schools programme.

Detailed cost modelling work is currently being undertaken. This modelling and
analysis builds on the work undertaken by Public Policy Institute Wales / Frontier
Economics in autumn 2015. This is a highly complex piece of work because key
factors such as the number of eligible children, take-up rates, number of hours
utilised, length of eligibility, and hourly cost impact on the cost

estimates. Alongside this work, | am also commissioning an independent
financial review of the provision and cost of providing childcare, and the value of
the childcare sector to the Welsh economy. This will make a major contribution
to building the evidence base needed for the childcare offer and will enable us to
deliver government-funded childcare that is attractive to the sector and also
provides value for money for the tax payer.

| know that quality early education and childcare leads to better outcomes for

children. A well qualified, professional workforce is by far the most important
factor in delivering the quality of services that will give children the best possible

Pack Page 16
16



start in life. To ensure quality provision | need our early years, childcare and play
practitioners to be equipped to provide the best possible support for children, to
encourage them to develop to their full potential. My 10-year plan for the early
years, childcare and play workforce in Wales, to be published next Spring, will set
out ambitious plans to move towards a profession which is highly regarded, able
to recruit and retain a high quality skilled workforce and actively pursuing
continuous professional development.

Successive evaluations have concluded that the availability of quality, affordable
childcare is essential to support people who need to work, or acquire skills to
enable them to work. Alongside affordable childcare some parents may need
additional support to return to work and sustain employment. Some of the
barriers to employment include financial stability, reluctance to use formal
childcare and parents’ lack of confidence in returning to work especially if they
have been out of work for some time. The ESF Parents, Childcare &
Employment (PaCE) grant supports parents into training and employment by
addressing barriers and meeting any childcare needs that may be presenting a
barrier. Ultimately, over 1,500 parents should be assisted to enter sustainable
employment.

Parents, Childcare and Employment (PaCE) was launched on 13 October 2015
for parents aged over 25, with a total budget of £10.9million up to 2018. The
Welsh Government is the lead beneficiary with DWP as joint beneficiary. DWP
will employ 43 Parent Employment Advisers who will mostly be based within
Flying Start settings, and other family based centres. It will target almost 8,000
economically inactive parents over the life of the operation and support lone
parents, parents from a workless household or assist a second earner in a
working household. It will operate outside Communities First Clusters and will
complement the Communities for Work ESF operation. No additional allocation
has been made to the Childcare and Play budget in order to support PaCE but
the necessary match funding is being provided via the Families First Budget.

The childcare offer has the potential to be a catalyst for a wider transformation in
the childcare sector, increasing the accessibility, affordability and availability of
childcare for all parents and children of all ages, improving the flexibility and
guality of what is available. This will build on the other support | currently provide
for childcare providers including:

e Providing local authorities with £2.3million funding each year since 2012 to

help them to provide wrap around childcare out of school hours and during
holidays. In line with my priorities, local authorities have focused on offering

Pack Page 17
17



out of school childcare, including holiday play schemes, to children from low
income families and those with specific needs;

e Providing over £4.3 million over three years (since September 2014) to the
CWLWM consortia, comprising the five main childcare organisations in
Wales, to support the childcare sector and help us develop innovative flexible
childcare solutions to meet the needs of families;

e Securing £6.3m within West Wales and the Valleys, jointly funded by Welsh
Government and the European Social Fund, to support the raising of skills
and standards across the existing childcare workforce;

e Working with CSSIW to ensure the National Minimum Standards are fit for
purpose and that the regulation and inspection ensures that children and
parents in Wales can access safe, quality childcare;

e The funding for the Family Information Service (FIS) who provide free,
impartial help, support, guidance and advice to families and childcare
providers.

e Providing business advice and support to childcare providers through
Business Wales.

| am also leading on the ESF Project ‘Progress for Success’ (PfS), which has
been developed alongside the draft 10-year plan for the early years, childcare
and play workforce in Wales. The main purpose of PfS is to increase the quality
of provision accessed within registered maintained and non-maintained settings
by increasing the levels of recognised childcare and play qualifications held by
the existing Early Years, Childcare and Play workforce.

Other Support for Families

e Families First

The Families First Programme is an innovative programme that promotes the
development by all local authorities of effective multi-agency systems and
support for families, with a clear emphasis on prevention and early
intervention for families, particularly those living in poverty. The Welsh
Government has committed to maintain the Families First programme in 2017-18.

During 2017-18 | am making changes to the commissioned projects element of
Families First. | have agreed a lengthy transition period to allow the full impacts
of the changes to be considered. Changes which will be phased-in during 2017-
18 will ensure that the Families First programme is able to focus on developing
services which address identified gaps in service provision for parents and young

Pack Page 18
18



people (including youth work), linking the programme with the prevention of
Adverse Childhood Experiences.

The Families First programme is a major driver in the development of multi-
agency ‘Team Around the Family’ approaches (TAF). Wales is currently the only
UK country that requires all local authority areas to develop and embed a “‘Team
Around the Family’ and local authorities are encourage to use the approach in
other Programmes beside Families First.

Evaluation evidence shows Families First has delivered a significant change in
the way every local authority delivers family support. Multi-agency working is
now recognised as essential, and the programme has improved the way
agencies work together to support our most vulnerable families. The third report
from the National Evaluation of Families First was published in September 2015.
It highlighted the transformative effect the programme could have on families’
lives. In particular, families recorded progress in relation to the following outcome
areas: children, young people and families are healthy and enjoy well-being;
families are confident, nurturing, resilient and safe; and children young people
and families in or at risk of poverty achieve their potential. The recent evaluation
also highlighted the potential large cost savings the programme can make
through helping families avoid poor long-term outcomes. The commissioning of
services through the Families First programme now better reflects the needs of
families than ever before. The family-focused approach to assessing and
tailoring family support is making a real difference to family outcomes and life
chances are being improved as a result.

e Family Information Services

Funding for the Family Information Services is primarily delivered via the Local
Authority Revenue Support Grant (RSG). Children and Families Division currently
contribute £45,000 per annum towards co-ordination and communication
activities with the Family Information Services (FIS) programme. This grant
ensures FIS workers receive training and personal development, are able to
share good practice and raise any key gaps in provision. It also provides a
mechanism for ensuring consistent messages of key policy are able to be
disseminated effectively to FIS.

e Parenting Support

My approach to positive parenting is set very firmly within the wider context of
economic improvement and wider wellbeing. As set out in “Taking Wales
Forward” the Programme for Government, we are committed to helping improve

Pack Page 19
19



health and well-being for all to ensure everyone can fulfil their potential, meet
their educational aspirations and play a full part in the economy and society of
Wales.

The proposed legislation on removing the defence of reasonable punishment will
form a key part of my overall action on promoting positive parenting, driving
behavioural change and bringing about positive outcomes for our children in
Wales. This is being delivered through the provision of information and advice
via the Parenting: Give it Time website, Family Information Services and Family
Point Cymru and through practical support via Flying Start and Families First.

A budget of £0.4million has been identified to take forward my positive parenting
work next year. No additional funding has been allocated as yet for any

legislation to remove the defence of reasonable punishment.

e Children and Families Delivery Grant (CEDG)

The five Children and Families Delivery Grant projects are proceeding as
planned. The current programme ends 2017-18. Grant allocations have not
changed since the grant was awarded. However, Children in Wales has been
tasked with additional work for which they have been awarded £0.240 million
per annum over 4 financial years until 31 March 2017. The additional funding
comes from the Empowering Children BEL (311) but is paid through the CFDG
for convenience.

| will review the future of this grant during 2017-18.

Child Poverty

There is no separate budget for tackling child poverty for the Welsh Government.
This is because there are a range of policies and programmes in place to tackle
child poverty, which are being taken forward. This includes key commitments
such as Flying Start, Families First, the Pupil Deprivation Grant and the Healthy
Child Wales Programme. There are also a range of other mainstream services
which are delivering support for low income households, which form part of wider
funding arrangements.

Tackling poverty continues to be a priority for the Welsh Government. Although
Ken Skates has overall responsibility for economic equality, all Cabinet

Pack Page 20
20



Secretaries are expected to contribute to the agenda and improve the outcomes
of low income households.

Children’s and Younq People’s Rights and Entitlements

A budget of £0.357 million has been allocated to take forward the following work
in 2017-18. The proposed programme of work takes forward Ministerial
commitments in relation to the Rights of Children and Young Person’s (Wales)
Measure 2011 and, the Children and Families (Wales) Measure 2010.

This funding will enable us to meet the responsibilities under legislation and more
importantly ensure the voices of children and young people are heard as we
develop and implement policy under this new government.

Section 5 of the Measure places a duty on Ministers to take such steps as are
appropriate to promote knowledge and understanding amongst the public,
including children and young people, of the UNCRC and the Protocols. This duty
is designed to give effect to obligations on government, ensuring the UNCRC is
part of the framework for all decision making. This is set out in Article 42 of the
UNCRC which states Governments should make the Convention widely known to
adults and children alike. Knowledge and understanding of the UNCRC and its
Optional Protocols amongst children, adults and organisations has a very
important part to play in ensuring the rights and obligations they contain are
respected.

Measuring increase in awareness has been challenging. However, last year |
was able to include some questions in the Beaufort Survey around awareness of
UNCRC. This provided me with a baseline and the same questions will be run
again this year. In addition, | am hoping to have some questions included in the
national survey.

Children’s Commissioner for Wales

The Commissioner’s budget has been protected for a number of years, but in the
current financial climate | have been clear that my priority must be front line
services that impact directly on children, young people and families. To this end,
the Commissioners budget was reduced by 10% for the financial year 2016-17
and will remain cash flat for 2017-18. All Commissioners faced the same
percentage cut for 2016-17. The Commissioner has reviewed her office
organisation and is delivering with the reduced budget.

Pack Page 21
21



It is not for the Welsh Government to comment on how the Commissioner
allocates the budget made available to her. The budget estimate for 2017-18
makes no reference to any potential costs of implementing recommendations
from the Independent Review of the Office of the Children’s Commissioner
for Wales, Many of the recommendations related to improving value for money
and this has helped the Commissioner in reviewing her structure to realise
savings.

Advocacy

The development of the National Approach to Statutory Advocacy for children
with a statutory entitlement will, when applied, deliver consistency of entitlement
and good practice in the commissioning, delivery and awareness of statutory
advocacy provision in Wales. This also supports professionals, families and
those promoting and protecting the rights and well-being of children and young
people through wider networking, enhancing the partnership model to embed the
service within other professional sectors. Advocacy services can also help to
safeguard the most vulnerable children and young people and guard against
poor practice.

An implementation plan with phased implementation of the national approach
along with Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) will be monitored. This is currently
in development by local authorities and will require agreement by Welsh
Government. | will monitor quantitative and qualitative information against
agreed KPIs.

To align budgets with the new Ministerial portfolios, at the First Supplementary
Budget in June 2016, £1.06million transferred from the Health and Social
Services MEG to the Communities and Children MEG. Included in this transfer
was £190,000 used to support advocacy services for Adults. As a result this will
transfer back to the HSS MEG in the Second Supplementary Budget. This
leaves a budget of £0.870 million remaining within the Communities and
Children MEG for 2017-18.

Part of this work includes the development of the MEIC Helpline. This is the first
national information, advice and advocacy helpline of its kind providing children
and young people with a single point of contact via freephone, instant messaging
and text. A two year contract (plus the option for an additional 2 years) was
awarded in April 2016 to Promo Cymru following public tender exercise in 2015.

Pack Page 22
22



From the short through to the long term, MEIC will be the first point of contact for
children and young people, as well as those who are concerned about them, to
access an independent, confidential support empowering them to get their voice
heard on matters that affect them. It will promote, protect and secure the rights
and entitlements of children and young people, providing accessible information,
assistance and advocacy appropriate to individual circumstances, need and
communication preferences. It will ensure quality provision delivered by
professional, appropriately skilled and trained staff, supporting development and
training opportunities for children and young people.

MEIC will ensure accessibility and inclusion with regard to diversity and equality
in respect of Welsh language, hearing/ sight impairment, learning difficulties,
literacy, culture, gender, sexuality and any other issues throughout the service.

20 Degrees Consulting Ltd were commissioned in 2014 to undertake an
evaluation of MEIC to evaluate the effectiveness, impact and value for money
delivered by MEIC, in providing national advocacy and advice for children and
young people in Wales. The results from that review have informed the new
contract which went out to public tender in 2015.

The programme of work is considered to support the Welsh Government
priorities for tackling poverty by better empowering professionals to safeguard
children at risk of abuse or harm and by securing access for children and young
people to information, advice and advocacy, enabling them to take forward
informed discussions about the issues impacting on any aspect of their lives
including their health and well-being.

The improving outcomes work programme has a key theme of prevention and
early intervention. The whole work programme is being delivered using a
collaborative approach. Itis a long term change programme to deliver
sustainable preventative services that place the well-being of the child at its
heart. The voice of children is integral to the way | work and is represented
through a care experienced young person who is vice chair of the Ministerial
Advisory Group and through membership of Voices from Care, Children in Wales
and the Children’s Commissioner.

Play Policy

Funding for play has been provided via the Children & Families Delivery Grant,
which has been supporting Groundwork Wales to provide outdoor play
experiences for children in areas of high deprivation. In addition, a dedicated

Pack Page 23
23



grant has funded Play Wales, enabling them to to raise awareness of children
and young people’s need and right to play, promote good practice and provide
advice and guidance to support all those who have an interest in or responsibility
for providing for children’s play. The funding for both organisations ends in
September 2017. Their grant awards for 2017-18 are £204,495 and £120,000
respectively. | am currently considering options to provide future support for the
play agenda in Wales post September 2017.

CAFCASS Cymru

The Children and Family Court Advisory and Support Service (CAFCASS) Cymru
is a direct service delivery organisation undertaking statutory functions across
Wales on behalf of Welsh Ministers. In 2015-16 it worked with 7,500 of the most
vulnerable children and young people in Wales.

Family Justice policy is not devolved to Wales. CAFCASS Cymru works closely
with Her Majesty’s Court and Tribunal Service (HMCTS) and only becomes
involved in cases when requested to do so by the court. Their role is to
safeguard children and young people who are subject to family court proceedings
and ensure their voice within the Family Justice System is heard.

The financial allocation for 2016-17 is £10.162million and is split across
direct running costs and programmes, which include a contribution of
funding to supervised and supported contact centres and contact activities
related to the Children and Adoption Act 2006.

The organisational running costs budget (£9.830million) is split between staff
(£9.063million) and non staff costs (£0.767million), meaning 92% of the
organisational running costs budget is committed to staff costs providing statutory
duties to courts across Wales.

The contracted-out budget is allocated to Child Contact Services (£0.242million)
and the IRIS management system (£0.090million). This budget is fully
committed on a Ministerial or contractual basis. In 2015-16 a new case
management system (IRIS) was introduced. To enable the implementation to
take place, the organisation received ‘Invest to Save’ funding of £210,000. This is
to be paid back during the 2016-17 and 2017-18 financial years at £105,000 per
year.

The budget continues to remain at the same level despite increasing demand on
referrals over the last 12 months. The organisation has delivered a significant

Pack Page 24
24



change programme over recent years. Work undertaken included an
Administrative Review and a LEAN review of administrative functions that
resulted in a consistent, streamlined and more efficient administration model
across Wales.

Whilst the major change programme has been completed, there is a need to
continue to absorb the increasing costs of demand for services and constantly
review practices to ensure maximum efficiency. During 2016-17 an Innovation
Programme was launched aimed at maximising efficiency and the ability to
respond to this increasing demand for services.

In the last 12 months, Private Law referrals have increased by 13.6% and Public
Law referrals have increased by 11.5%. Care cases, which are the most
resource intensive work, increased by 8.6%, a trend that has continued into the
current financial year.

Despite these increases, overall outcomes are to continue to deliver on the 26
week statutory target for the completion of care cases in public law and ensure
the organisation continues to have no waiting list for children. This work also

seeks to secure early resolution in court to achieve early outcomes for children.

Outcomes will be measured by monthly reporting of management performance
information internally and to external partners and engagement with stakeholders
to scrutinise and review contracts/grants to ensure value for money/ quality of
services for children.

Adoption, Fostering and Looked after Children

This budget looks to address Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACESs) by taking
forward a programme of work which will improve outcomes for looked after
children including adoption and other placements. This budget contributes to
reducing ACES, supporting prevention and early intervention priorities and
improving the well-being measure outcomes. The success of this work will be
measured against the:

¢ National Adoption Service performance framework;

e Wales Adoption Register (quarterly performance data);

¢ National outcomes framework for people who need care and support and
carers who need support (indicator);

e Performance measurement framework for local authorities in relation to
their social services functions;

Pack Page 25
25



e Local authority social services data collections.

The Ministerial Advisory Group on Improving Outcomes for Children includes
representatives from across local government, health, the court system,
education and housing to enable effective links and joint ownership to be
delivered. The Ministerial Advisory Group on Improving Outcomes for Children
will have responsibility for overseeing the improving outcomes for children
programme of work. | regularly have trilateral meetings between Ministers and
Cabinet Secretaries to discuss common priorities in this area of my portfolio.

To align budgets with the new ministerial portfolios, the budgets used to support
the maintenance and development of adoption, fostering and looked after
children will transfer from the Health and Social Services MEG to the
Communities and Children MEG as part of the Second Supplementary Budget in
January/February 2017.

Evaluation by CASCADE (Children’s Social Care Research and Development
Centre) has been built into the projects within the work programme to ensure
value for money. The Social Service and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 provides
the legislative framework for sustainable service transformation in innovative
ways through early intervention to support improved outcomes.

There are 2 areas that have the potential to impact on the Welsh Government
Legislative Programme. In respect of Looked after Children, the ‘Social Service
and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014’ and the ‘Regulation and Inspection of Social
Care (Wales) Act 2016’ provide the primary legislative basis of the work
programme. The secondary legislation, regulations, under Part 2 of the
Regulation and Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016 will be co-produced.
In respect of advocacy, further legislation under the Regulation and Inspection of
Social Care (Wales) Act (2015) will be introduced in 2017.

Carl Sargeant AM
Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children

Pack Page 26
26



Annex A

COMMUNITIES AND CHILDREN MAIN EXPENDITURE GROUP (MEG)
RESOURCE BUDGET - Departmental Expenditure Limit
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
SPA Actions BEL Title Final Outturn Forecast Outturn Draft Budget
£000's £000's Allocations
Childcare & Play Strategies 2,682 3,066 12,716
Support for Children's Rights 207 357 357
Children's Commissioner 1,715 1,543 1,543
Supporting Children Advocacy Board* 856 870 870
i f Chil Famil ices* 11 7 7
Enabling Children and Gran_ts in SuppFtho Child & Family Services 5 570 570
Communities Services for Children* 531 352 352
CAFCASS Cymru* 10,375 10,162 10,267
T Prevention and Early Prevention and Early Intervention 160,788 155,533 154,383
[a)) Intervention
(9
~ Financial Inclusion and Support for the Voluntary Sector/Volunteering 6,800 6,125 6,125
éU; Third Sector Financial Inclusion 13,349 13,927 13,927
o) 197,418 192,505 201,110
o~
CAPITAL BUDGET - Departmental Expenditure Limit
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18
SPA Actions BEL Title Final Outturn Final Budget Draft Budget
£000's £000's Allocations
Communities and Communities and . :
Tackling Poverty Tackling Poverty Flying Start Capital 6,892 3,000 1,260
SPA Actions BEL 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Communities and Communities and . :
Tackling Poverty Tackling Poverty Flying Start Capital 1,260 566 529 860

* 2015-16 Outturn part of Health and Social Services MEG

27



ANNEX B1

Children’s Rights Impact Assessment: Extension of requlations and changes to

the Childcare Registration Framework

Children’s Rights Impact Assessment (CRIA) Template

Title / Piece Extension of the Childcare Registration Framework within the “Children and Families (Wales)
of work: Measure 2010”

Related SF /

LF number SF/LG/2075/15

(if applicable)

Name of .

Official: Jenna Smith

Department: | Childcare Development Division

Date: xx/03/2016

Signature:

Please complete the CRIA and retain it for your records on iShare. You may be asked to provide this document
at a later stage to evidence that you have complied with the duty to have due regard to children’s rights e.g.
Freedom of Information access requests, monitoring purposes or to inform reporting to the NAfW.

Upon completion you should also forward a copy of the CRIA to the Measure Implementation Team for
monitoring purposes using the dedicated mailbox CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

If officials are not sure about whether to complete a CRIA, they should err on the side of caution and seek
advice from the Measure Implementation Team by forwarding any questions to our mailbox
CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

You may wish to cross-reference with other Impact Assessments undertaken.

NB. All CRIAs undertaken on legislation must be published. All non-legislative CRIAs will be listed on the WG
website and must be made available upon request. Ministers are however, encouraged to publish all

completed CRIAs

Pack Pag 28



mailto:CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Six Steps to Due Regard

1. What's the 4. Advising the 5. Recording
piece of work 2. Analysing the Minister & and

6. Revisiting
the piece of

work as and
when needed

and its impact Ministerial communicating
objective(s)? decision the outcome

Step 1. What’s the piece of work and its objective(s)?

Currently in Wales childcare registration is generally required where childcare providers provide care for children
up to the age of eight. This requirement is set out in Section 19 of the Children and Families (Wales) Measure
2010, and includes both day care providers and child minders. | registered childcare providers must abide by
relevant regulations and by standards as set out in the National Minimum Standards. This standard of care is
assured through inspection and regulation by CSSIW against these standards. Regulated childcare encompasses a
wide range of different types of provision including child-minders, day nurseries, out of school childcare, open
access play provision, and holiday play schemes.

We are increasing the upper age limit for the compulsory registration of childcare beyond the age of 8 for the
following reasons:

e The current system of regulation in Wales means there is no consistent means of regulating the quality
and suitability of childcare provision for children aged eight years and over. This is different to the
situation elsewhere in the UK.

e The Welsh Government, in our Building a Brighter Future: Early Years and Childcare Plan, committed to
conducting a review of early years regulation and inspection. The Independent Review into Childcare and

Early Education Registration, Regulation and Inspection which was published in 2014 recommended all

child care provision in Wales, including child care for children aged eight and over should be registered
and subject to inspection. The Welsh Government is committed to ensuring an appropriate registration
framework is in place in Wales, which provides assurances regarding the appropriateness and safety of
childcare provided for all children. This will benefit not only the child, but the parents/carers and also
childcare providers.

e Wales has also committed to ensuring that the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child

(UNCRC) is upheld in regard to all policy work. The convention includes the need to ensure children are

properly cared for, the need to ensure their opinions are listened to and the need to ensure they get

support with any disability they have. We wish to ensure that the articles contained within the convention

are upheld not just for younger children, but also for older children in childcare.
The key aims of the proposed changes are to ensure:

e Proportionality — the care provided for children is regulated in a proportionate manner taking into
account the needs and age of the child
e Quality — a quality care service is provided for children of all ages across all ranges of provision.
o Safety — all children are cared for in safe and secure environment.
The desired outcome will be an increase in the number of registered childcare providers in Wales for children
from 0 to 12 years.

Paék Page 29



http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/earlyyearshome/independent-review-of-childcare-and-early-education-registration-regulation-and-inspection-exectutive-summary-and-recommendations/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/earlyyearshome/independent-review-of-childcare-and-early-education-registration-regulation-and-inspection-exectutive-summary-and-recommendations/?lang=en
http://www.uncrcletsgetitright.co.uk/images/PDF/UNCRCRights.pdf
http://www.uncrcletsgetitright.co.uk/images/PDF/UNCRCRights.pdf

Step 2. Analysing the impact

In developing proposals to take forward our policy objective to ensure there was an appropriate childcare
registration framework in place for children over the age of 8; a number of options were considered. These
included:

e What should be the upper age limit at which childcare providers should be required to register; and

e Whether there should be a voluntary or compulsory system of regulation for children over the age of 8

years.

Welsh Government officials undertook a number of activities whilst developing this policy. Firstly, they engaged
with representatives of the childcare sector. This engagement was via CWLWM, a consortium of the 5 main
childcare sector organisations. Representatives of the Play sector and Local Authorities were also engaged in the
process. Finally, a 12-week public consultation took place between March and June 2015 seeking views about the
proposed changes to the registration of childcare provision in Wales. Consultation events were arranged in north
and south Wales aimed at a strategic level within Local Authorities, Childcare, Play and Youth Sector. Events at a
local level aimed at providers took place in partnership with the childcare CWLWM consortium and Play Wales.

Although the consultation was public and open to all we did not engage directly with children and young people.
However, in the consultation events, discussions took place about the impact of the proposed changes on children
and a specific event was held with the youth service, who works with young people aged between 11 and 25
years. During post consultation events, providers were also asked to give their “top tips” for caring for and
engaging with children over the age of 8. This information will be used to create help and guidance for providers
when caring for children, to learn lessons on the sorts of needs older children will have.

The Consultation demonstrated wide scale support from the childcare sector for extending registration to children
aged 8 and over. Equality of treatment for all children in line with the rights based approach of the UNCRC was
given as a reason for supporting the proposals; with comments referring to the fact that children over the age of 8
were as deserving of high quality care as those under that age. A summary of the outcome of the consultation
including the Welsh Government response can be found here.

Following consultation and in the light of the responses received the decision was made to extend the upper age
limit for the registration of childcare provision from 8 to12 years with effect from 1 April 2016. Responses to
consultation suggested this was the upper age limit at which most parents use formal childcare. This would also
bring the system of registration in Wales in line with other parts of the UK, align it with the new Tax Free Childcare
scheme in 2017 and help reduce the risks of bringing other youth support activities into the scope of childcare
registration.

As part of the arrangements to implement an extension to the registration of childcare some changes will also
need to be made to the National Minimum Standards for Regulated Childcare. These changes need to take
account of the different requirements for older children, to ensure their care is regulated in a manner
proportionate to their age and increased autonomy. The changes will be informed by the consultation responses,
engagement with the childcare and play sector, arrangements currently in place elsewhere in the UK. We will also
ensure changes pay due regard to the UNCRC.

These changes include amending the qualifications requirements to ensure providers are qualified to care for
children up to 12 years of age and amending the adult — child ratios to ensure providers can provide safe, quality
care for children, whilst minimising any negative impacts such changes could have on the sector. These changes
were informed by consultation responses, further post consultation engagement with the childcare sector and
information about existing registered provision from CSSIW.

As a result of increasing the upper age limit for compulsory registration of childcare. arrangements were also
made to extend existing exceptions from childcare regulation. These include provisions not exceeding two hours
care in any one day and those where carers provide coaching or tuition in certain activities e.g. sport or
performing arts. In line with the consultation responses, youth services for children who have attained the age of
11 will also be excluded from childcare registration.

Pack Pag® 30



http://gov.wales/consultations/people-and-communities/extension-of-childcare-registration/?lang=en

Links with the UNCRC

Pre-Consultation we took account of the UNCRC when developing proposed changes to the NMS, to ensure
proposals within the consultation complimented the current standards, and met relevant UNCRC objectives. The
articles which could be met by these legislative changes were identified in the early policy development stages.

Post consultation we have worked carefully with the sector and providers to ensure that our requirements are fit
for purpose for older children. Throughout the updated NMS we have specified the requirement for older children
to have a say in their wants and needs, and an influence on the setting. This is designed to encourage, develop
and support older children to gain important skills and to develop during their attendance at child care or play
settings.

The changes will inevitably put an increased regulatory burden on the sector however we have sought to ensure
any additional requirements on providers are proportionate and take account of the views expressed in
consultation. We have worked with CSSIW to ensure arrangements are in place to support all childcare providers
to effect a seamless transition in complying with the new registration rules and changes to the NMS. The
arrangements which have been put in place minimise burdens and potential disruption to providers’ businesses.
In addition any changes made to the NMS are proportionate with where necessary lead in times provided to
ensure the impact of the changes are mitigated and the potential for increased costs reduced and are reflective of
a guiding principle, article 3, of the UNCRC in ensuring the best interests of children.

Step 3. How does your piece of work support and promote children’s rights?
There are numerous articles within the UNCRC which our policy change will seek to uphold. These include:

e Article 3 states that all organisations should work towards what is best for the child. The best interests of
the child are at the heart of our changes, and this means ensuring that services which care for children
conform to the standards established by Welsh Government. The primary concern of the standards is to
ensure that children are cared for in a safe, quality environment.

e Article 12 states that a child must be able to express their views in weight with their age and maturity.
Post consultation we have worked carefully with the sector and providers to ensure that our requirements
are fit for purpose for older children, and have not made assumptions that the current NMS is satisfactory
in regulating care for children over the age of 8. Throughout the updated NMS we have specified the
requirement for older children to have a say in their wants and needs, and an influence on the setting.
This is designed to encourage, develop and support older children to gain important skills and to develop
during their attendance at child care or play settings.

e Article 18 states that Government should support parents in helping to look after children, particularly
when both parents work. The Welsh Government has a statutory commitment to ensuring high quality,
sustainable, affordable childcare is available across Wales, and works closely with Local Authorities to
achieve this. This policy change will ensure provision is protected for children up to the age of twelve. This
change will also allow parents to access the UK wide tax and benefits subsidies open to parents who use
registered childcare, to help make childcare more affordable.

e Article 19 states that the government must act to safeguard children from mistreatment using all the
powers at their disposal. Through childcare settings registering, they will need to comply with section 9.6-
9.9 (Behaviour), 20.1-20.6 (Environment) and 24.12 (Safety) of the NMS. By extending these standards to
older children we will be improving safeguarding procedures.

e Article 23 states that state parties should ensure that disabled children should have specialised care and
support in order to lead full, independent lives. Through childcare settings registering, they will need to
comply with section 4.8 and 4.9 (Meeting individual needs) of the NMS. These specifically state that the

Paék Page 31




facilities and environment should both be suitable for disabled children and children with additional
needs, in order for them to have access alongside their peers to provide opportunities and promote their
welfare and development.

The decisions made by the Minister following the consultation can be found here.

Development of this policy has taken account of the UNCRC articles as set out above. The increase in the
upper age limit for the compulsory registration of childcare provision ensures children up to the age of 12
will now be covered by the NMS and associated inspection requirements.

This policy change will also provide opportunity to impact on other cross policy areas including the tackling
poverty agenda. This change will enable more parents in Wales to access the UK wide tax and benefit
subsidies available in respect of the costs of using registered and approved childcare. This will help to
reduce the costs of childcare, therefore contributing to the tackling poverty priority of enabling more
parents to access affordable childcare.

Step 4. Advising the Minister and Ministerial decision

A summary of the outcome of the consultation including the Welsh Government response can be found

here.

The Ministerial response to the consultation, including her decisions as a result, can be found here.

Step 5. Recording and communicating the outcome
Final version to be retained on i-share

It is anticipated that this piece of work will need to be revisited at the following points:
1.

2.
3.
4

Step 6. Revisiting the piece of work as and when needed

Announcement on changes to Childcare Registration — September 2015
Provider workshops with CSSIW — December 2015

Publication of the updated National Minimum Standards — March 2016
Coming in to force date — 01 April 2016

Pack Pag& 32



http://www.assembly.wales/ministerial%20statements%20documents/childcare-regulation-registration-wales/151123childcareregistrationen.doc
http://gov.wales/consultations/people-and-communities/extension-of-childcare-registration/?lang=en
http://www.assembly.wales/ministerial%20statements%20documents/childcare-regulation-registration-wales/151123childcareregistrationen.doc

Budgets

Please give any details:

The requirements of the principles of the UNCRC have been considered in the development of this policy
and where possible, embedded within the policy. Revising the NMS to take account of the needs of older
children and extending the registration of childcare beyond the age of 8 have cost implications but these
were part of the initial policy decision and not a result of completion of the CRIA

Monitoring & Review

Yes

April 2016

See next page for a
Summary List of the
UNCRC articles

Pagk Page 33



THE UNITED NATIONS CONVENTION
ON THE RIGHTS OF THE CHILD

www.uncrcletsgetitright.co.uk
Liywodraeth Cymmu
The Linied Mations Comention on the Rights of the Chid s an ntemational agreemant tat prosects the human Welsh Govermment

rights of the chidren under #he oge o 18 0On ¥ December 1991, the United Kingdom of Geect Brilon and Marhem
bedand fermaly agreed o moke e that every chid in the: LK has all the rights oz ished in the: convention. The Welsh
Ceowesnment has shown Bs mamiiment o the comeention by adopting it as the bosts for policy making for childreniin
Walas

Aliogether these ore 54 orfides In the mnvention. Artides 43-54 ore abcut how adults ond goverments shold work

fogether ko moke sure al dhildren o entifed i their rights. The informofion conioined here s about arides 1-43 which
U o

Articla 1 daciior that alect them, ond lo howe et Article 22 Article 33
Bvirper under 18 yoors of oo hew o they oo ok inke ot b swhea oo inl & = afugei  Tha Covammant should ol
rights in His Comeanfion. Artide 13 Hﬂ'ﬁHl‘aﬂhmrdﬂm boir i pratiching chidhen s s
Article 2 Chribebisn besves the right b gt oned e shere Article 34
Thas Coiwartion cpphis I veryons wholwsr  Plomafion o ey o the domaton snat— Article 23 Tha Crovvririnviset sk prchict chikdeer From
hlm:.d ﬁlﬂmﬂqm cheging b Hhain oo s s, ﬂmﬂﬂhﬁt krdddﬂ::rrdald aimane] e
o cod sprciinl cwm ol wpget s cony
orey i of okt come 4t 14 e e e o AT il 35
sk berv s right te ik ond el e Thar Cremtrrrnart sk ks sone thet chikdees
ﬁ.-udaa - H‘*ﬂﬂrﬁ* Mpmmﬂ;r:ﬂrdw Prﬂdemln_ e et bckcted or sekd
organisalion anonmed with chien soud @ long 35 they om ral doppng i it b oty hanclth
ek Eswerch whet i bt oy aeach chid mﬂgﬁamumnmgﬂ- mwbmﬂ-.ﬂﬁmmwa Article 346
choon srvirrmant 5o ot they wil soy beokty Childen shoud ba e
Article 4 Rich ccuntrias shoukd bl pocrar counfries,. axctivilis et ol herm thair devlopman
Coevemirinaiity shosubd moskon thisss rights Article 15 e ——
arvaibobia b chikan: ik besves e right b ol Bggadhosy csnd Article 37
i foin g o iporbofiers mlerg s Article 25 (i e bk s feve shecsided st b
Article 5 Fis chois it o eftesr pcin reem iy o whes cre bocheed affer by et bl et sruhy, Thiy sheael rist bab puf i prticn
Covemirannhs shoukd respaet the rights and i rights ittty ot then Hir gt shoukd hove saeth cxcdulls cared shesided bt b B i 1o
resperalbdian of forvilies 1o drect ond quide Pk shuces® nivivensed Mgty convhact with ther iamles
i childier 5ottt o5 thiy o, thy leom Article 14
(AR ra—— Chikchen beve @ right 1o privacy. The low sieud. Article 26 Article 38
i:haﬂnnfu'ndh:du therir vty o Thay Govmrronant sheukd provice eofra money Cvnmminents shoukd not allow chidlen under
Article & tharir oo rorre, i ond ther oy this chiben of Fosdas in i 154 jair He cres Chiden i wer 2ores
Al chilcken berve the right of e Gowsmments  homes. seciv il profechion.
sheuld ansune that survive ond cheelop Article 27
by, Article 7 Chikhun bowe o fight to a stordond of Article 3%
ek berwos thes right o ssboble normation: et s geved encugh o meal their g Childhin whea hows bewn regleched or abussd
Article 7 frim this s sl Talaeision, rocks and [ [ e —— by sheadd et speiciol bkt rashom ther el
ﬂld‘&u‘.h:nll‘nfd‘ihahgah g s provide ormation Bl fomiles who ool oford e provide Bis [
ragghiend rowves, B right o o noflonclty ond  childen oo ondesslond, and sheuld rot
m?mhmw.mhmpuﬁhu premt mobwial et codd horm chibee. — Article 28 Articls 40
feot by thossr pcsmrds G&mmn@ihnﬁdﬂmﬂzﬂn ik whes crw osevivused of brweking the low
h‘ﬂdﬂﬁ in schessls sheudl mapact chidun's humen Muﬁ Prisco wltanraes
Article 8 w hrrgiaa Primery wckiceiann sheubd b fres oo e ey o il For ths meed
Coevamiransiih shisukd respect chidee’s right i H-ld-&:b&nhd mwhu,}ﬁﬂhhmwm s offenos
a rs, 3 ity ond famly s utﬂhﬂd.d-ﬂﬁmmmnﬂﬁﬂhh e 41
' M By Arti
Article 7 wwu,,h" memm Artide 29 I the lows of o cousrity probect
Childrmn shoukd nok ba ssporahed fom Her Frkseestion dhwaded cmstesss sach chibds chiden bafier o the oricles of Fe
Fﬂu‘muf-hah.hﬂﬂmgﬁdh Article 19 e porscsralty v et e thoe ull B shesded Closrwmriion, Mty e lerws shoukd sy
ﬂ;ﬁh npﬂ'ﬂlnrrdﬂr?an#ﬂtg Govemmimants shoukd anues ol chidhen o snessrms childo b respact their possnt Art
e e e wih e o gy it oo cthr s k e 82 ek ha Gt
S o slexy i coniect i of
bnc, prewinl, s This migght bt ths chid mahﬂahﬁh pw Article 30 kruma b ol v, el chibvan,
b Bervs o right b learm and i the
Article 10 Article 20 language and ks o het icrles, whater For Rurther inormation cn the Linbed
Firibee whe: bt i sl covunfrias. shedd be Chiohan 'whea coniat b locked ofter by thar e one shomed by Ths rogerty of pacpls in Fletans Cornlion H'IER]E"I‘!
ﬁ-ﬁdhnﬁ:ﬂb‘mﬁmmﬁﬂm mh‘r:,*ﬂmdhwd}u , bry s ceamiry o pol of the (hid uinﬂr'l\Hﬂ'i
T i fee ] I ekt o [ o -
ol oo g e Atidedl Goverrment's INCRC Webste
a a ) | ]
Artidel Article 21 o B e parend wnadelsgettright ok
Comemnirivoavhy sheakd i sl chibeeer Wb chikde o kg COET
tugﬁma-rdhlmﬂnif:um st bl wibea b et ot tham, Tha soma s Article 32 e - The Mational Hormeation and
Ao Rk Ry St g M St omg e
r et by o [ o
Chicdnmn Fenvn e right b sy whe By bh,mmﬂﬁﬁ il charine cauklr

ik sheuid hesppn, whan adulls o making

N

Pack Pag¥ 34



ANNEX B2
Children’s Rights Impact Assessment: Play Wales Strategic Policy Grant

Children’s Rights Impact Assessment (CRIA) Template

Title / Piece
of work: Play Wales Strategic Policy Grant

Related SF /
LF number SF/LG/3165/14 - Funding for Play Wales

(if applicable)

Name of

Official: Robert Edwards

Department: | Children Young People and Families Division.

Date: 21 October 2014

Signature:

Please complete the CRIA and retain it for your records on iShare. You may be asked to provide this
document at a later stage to evidence that you have complied with the duty to have due regard to
children’s rights e.g. Freedom of Information access requests, monitoring purposes or to inform
reporting to the NAfW.

Upon completion you should also forward a copy of the CRIA to the Measure Implementation Team
for monitoring purposes using the dedicated mailbox CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

If officials are not sure about whether to complete a CRIA, they should err on the side of caution and
seek advice from the Measure Implementation Team by forwarding any questions to our mailbox
CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

You may wish to cross-reference with other Impact Assessments undertaken.

NB. All CRIAs undertaken on legislation must be published. All non-legislative CRIAs will be listed on
the WG website and must be made available upon request. Ministers are however, encouraged to
publish all completed CRIAs.

Paék Page 35



mailto:CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Six Steps to Due Regard

1. What's the 4. Advising the 5. Recording
piece of work 2. Analysing the Minister & and

6. Revisiting
the piece of

work as and
when needed

and its impact Ministerial communicating
objective(s)? decision the outcome

Step 1. What’s the piece of work and its objective(s)?

The Purpose of this grant is to support the development of childrens Play policy in Wales. It directly
supports the objectives of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child. (UNCRC).

The Play Wales Strategic Policy Grant (PWSPG) is perceived to fill gaps in advice on policy
development and advice on the practical implementation of policy including such issues as
workforce development and play activities. Essentially the beneficiary organisation, Play Wales, will
support the Welsh Government at a strategic level to continue to lead the children’s play agenda in
Wales and internationally. There is also an element in the proposal to provide accredited training to
Play workers. The primary project activities are:

a) provision of strategic support to Local Authorities and partners for implementation of
the Play Sufficiency Duty;

b) development of an international centre of excellence around play;

c) advice to Welsh Government in relation to all policy areas where there are links to
play; and,

d) advice to Welsh Government on development of the play workforce.

e) continuation of training for those already registered, or in the process of registering,
for the Play work: Principles into Practice (P3) qualification, developed and facilitated
by Play Wales.

Play Wales’ activities under this project will also support the Welsh Government in its work at an
international basis in terms of play policy, where Wales and indeed the Welsh Government are
seen as world leaders. It will also help support the Welsh Government’s agenda in delivering the 10
year strategy for the childcare and play workforce, recently been published for consultation. It will
also support the Welsh Government’s work in relation to the play duties that have been placed on
local authorities.

The over arching view of Play related policy and the collaborative approach that this grant
encourages is intended to provide children, young people and families with a more coherent play
based service through organisations working together move from focussing on services and
process to focussing on delivery.

Funding for 18 months has been agreed.

Pack Pag® 36



Step 2. Analysing the impact

The Children and Families Delivery Grant is specifically about better Play outcomes for children,
young people and their families and the development of a professional work force. The grant is
relatively short term lasting only 18 months for the policy element and 12 months for the training
element.

An account manager has been assigned to the project and a work plan agreed. Regular account
management meeting will assess progress against the delivery plan and the impact the project is
having on Policy development in Wales.

At project end Play Wales will be required to evaluate the actual impact and outcomes of their
project in accordance with the methodology agreed with their account managers. This will include
the requirement to submit an evaluation report to the Welsh Government within 6 months of the
end of the project.

Step 3. How does your piece of work support and promote children’s rights?

The grant is intended to support children’s rights to play. The grant focusses on making rights to
play reality for many children, young people and families in Wales. The range of play related
activities which could be covered by the grant is potentially wide ranging from the provision of high
level over arching services to the Welsh Government, the provision of advice to support capacity
building amongst delivery organisations or representing Welsh interests at international events.

The Grant focusses on supporting the following UNCRC Articles/themes:

Article 3. The success of the programme will be monitored closely and evaluated with a primary
focus being the best interests of children and young people. The measurement of Outcomes and
impact is an integral part of the grant.

Article 24. Increased Health benefits through active play opportunities developed from policies and
initiatives which are informed through participation from Play Wales.

Article 29. Language and Play are essential components of divisional activities. The new grant can
provide additional support in this area. Early interventions allow the child to develop both in terms
of their personality and linguistic abilities making them more sociable and amenable to engaging
more closely with the education system.

Article 31. Play activities are directly supported through policy development and workforce training.

Paék Page 37




Step 4. Advising the Minister and Ministerial decision

Ministerial advice was provided under submission:
SF/LG/3165/14 Funding for Play Wales.

The Minister has approved the recommendation of the submission.

Step 5. Recording and communicating the outcome
Final version to be retained on i-share

Documentation relating to the development of the grant can be found on iShare under reference:
fA719706.

Step 6. Revisiting the piece of work as and when needed

The grant commences October 2014. Reviews of the programme will take place on an
guarterly basis as part of normal contract management activities

Pack Pag® 38




Budgets

Please give any details:

Monitoring & Review

See next page for a
Summary List of the
UNCRC articles

Pagk Page 39



THE UNITED NATIONS CONVENTION
ON THE RIGHTS OF THE CHILD

www.uncrcletsgetitright.co.uk

Liywodraeth Cymmu

Thee Lirtted Mations Coewention on the Rights of the Chid 15 an mermational agrement $at prosects the human Welsh Govesmment
rights of the chldren under fhe oge of 18, On ¥ December 1991, the Linted Kngdom of Geeot Briain ond Marhem
bedand prmaly ageed o moke aee that every child In thes LK s al the rights o isted in the comvenition. The Welsh
Coowesnment has shown s mmmiiment to the comeention by adoping i as the basks for poiicy making for chidren in
Walas

Aliogether these ore 5 orfides In the convention. Artides 43-54 e about how odults ond govemments shoald work
fogether ko moke sureal chidren are entifed o their rights. The nbvmation coriained here s chout orides 1-42 which
sed cart howwr childhen shoald b treated

Article 1 ﬁuﬁmﬂﬂ;ahdﬂﬂn,adhl'ﬂ_hl Article 22
Everyors under 1B Foge hnoife  cpnon i ezt Childmn wha come o 2 = mfugee
r#ﬂnh[ﬂﬂmﬂ,‘a‘m = Artide B3 Hﬂaﬂlﬂnhmrd‘hm bxser in pﬂﬂrgdﬁvfmmmn nugs
Article 2 i bervn thes right e gat cnd b shore ! Article 34
T Covmareion cpplis ks iveryons wholias  lomafion o bng s the romaion kvt Article 23 Teo Camasirviset s pashinct chies frien
h”ﬂ:d ﬂﬂmﬂqm cheraagyirg e Hm o 1y ot Eﬂ'ﬁd‘ﬂhﬂﬁ- krdddﬂﬂ::fr:}aﬂ i oo
o code spicid covm ol et s cost
b’ o offanly Ty <72 Ardicle 14 lead i cnd dspandent has " Article 35
ik Fenom the right le ik ond belevs Thuir Coxnrivise sPacai] racshisr s thet chikcear:
ﬁrﬂdﬂa - dﬂqm‘t Mp‘nclnlm:'r#w Fu'ﬂd?m%l!-h ol el abuetvdd or okl
ergeslon o wits il feud o long o they om ral dopping (i right bz oty hlth
et owerch whet s bt o wach chid ko gyt ek i ot shnkl o madbd&ﬂu,rﬁubﬁdwd Article 36
chi erverrmant o et they wil sy baabtye  (hildien shoud ba firewm cry
Crmmmants sheud moke hese rights Article 15 i this
vkl o chichan, Chckars bervin e right b il beyathar aned Article 37
o foin g ond orpennchens, s borg s Article 25 bk wwhea Borisch: i b sheoaded rost b
Article 5 Hhis choss ko ofher pacdn fream arfiying  Chikoban whe crm bk e by et locd o] vy, Thesy sheaded rd b pa e s
Coevwtarmaneaiils should respact the rights and thiir rigghtz. aautheriby nather than ther pomes sheod have ith cxcdults, caned sheeadd ke ol b b
resperalbifie of forbes to dect ond qude thrt hiecfica: ninvimend sy, et et ther el
i childear: 5o B, o5 thiry e, thasy leam Articdle 16
i i Fa rights gy, i besv 1 right 1 privacy: The low sheud Article 24 Article 38
e T afteacds s ey o Thar Crovmirivis sbcoikd prosicke sedves rrednay Coovmivasvhy shoukd et abow childss onda
Artide & Eﬂﬂgmdm,hl i i for th chikdren o Femibat In ramed. 15 e s ot e ik i e 2eass
A chibcran Berva tha right of e Gowsmments  bomes s ool prohaction:
sheidd ansune that sarvial ol darlop Article 27
bbby, Frﬂdahlzﬂ_ Chickan hewva 1 right 1o & sierclend Mdﬂﬂiﬁmthﬂn
Chicken right o mloble omalicn.  tat s trﬁq-uhn'ﬂlfu drd Chibcar reglecied or ohused
Article 7 mhmmﬂhm.mw mﬂﬁ.w shhcaded v spoecicl Pk b e Thaei sl
Al chilcken Perve the right lo 2 legaly s should provide inlormaotion ot h&iuh:ﬂ*ﬂdﬁ:ﬁdhmﬂh resgct
regiheend rorme, B right o o nafionclly ond  childhen cor undeslond, ond sheuld rot
mmmmmhmpﬂhmu prermcte mobeticls el cod herm chibee. Articls 28 Article 40
ot by Hhes pemnts D-H'ml'm‘n@thn-ﬂniml:lm- Chibckan ez o e e o bvmacking thes b
Pﬂ'ﬂdﬂm sapeect chikienei husan sheikd mosivi Priscs sardinnons
Article 8 m.m. brrgi:jlﬂ Primeary chuceiiesn shoukd b faes o chicar ety bon ssned ot th ol
Coevwtarmanegiits should respaet chldse’s right fo hld-kb&n*d iy Coraid mmgmwmmm st offanas
a Pz, @ nollonalty and famly fes s bt e snach chibd Cosrranesrds shoald bilp  aches Artidde 41
% urmi-shb
Article 9 P h’fm'g spport har, Article 29 i the bews of & acaTy pickict
i shealel ret b saperetend i thase Fihureshion ahodd cinasless drach b bk bnttis e ot bk off Heae
Falm.u;huni:iﬁﬂmgmd,h Article 19 e sty cnd iebirts b fhe il B sheukd Clrwmtitnn, Bt thessi ko shealed sy
o b Crvemimavonvhy shioubd envues fed childhen on childa e e
S e o o it vt o, ol prctact T e oo el b e o Article 42
susteribi hicrem thee right f shery i conviect with muadrqbah,hlpuma Thur Cocmmrrivvins shaoidd rocshn e Cormaiion
kot e, s the maght bt ths el crpors b wh ks, aber P Article 30 krcwn fe cll porents and chidhen.
il Ferva 3 right 1 leam o s thes
Article 10 Article 20 kg el e of st s, whether For furbbesr inkemation an the Linbed
Fiamibies whe bes i difemed couniries shoud be Chidven whe connot be leched olier by ther e o shomd by the moporty of peopls i ofians Comvention the Rights
el bmmm i Mhth“m b e yor et &hﬂﬂﬁmﬂﬂrﬁﬁ
poverts o In cordact o [ T = *
gﬂhﬂtyfnmnhﬂym m e “.Fl.l'ﬂdﬂﬂ‘ i o d Caomerrmert s MR Webate
a L] L - J
Artidell Articls 2 e e et wuesncrcletsgettrightonk!
Coevemmivennils, should ] childiar W cildmn one adophed e ]
mgmwdh.mmm st b b b bast for them. The some s Article 32 Clic: - The Motional Formetion ond
e e S L Ll e S
[ ettt b o [
Chikokan besvas thes Fight e 3y whit hh,mmm e choorine okt

ik shenid hesppan, when adults oo making

\l_

Pack Pag® 40



ANNEX B3
Children’s Rights Impact Assessment: Child Poverty Strtaegy for Wales

Children’s Rights Impact Assessment (CRIA) Template

Title / Piece

of work: 2015 Child Poverty Strategy for Wales

Related SF /

LF number | SF/LG/0236/15
(if applicable)

Name of

Official: Beverley Morgan

Department: | Local Government and Communities

Date: 20 March 2015

Signature: Beverley Morgan

Please complete the CRIA and retain it for your records on iShare. You may be asked to provide this
document at a later stage to evidence that you have complied with the duty to have due regard to
children’s rights e.g. Freedom of Information access requests, monitoring purposes or to inform
reporting to the NAfW.

Upon completion you should also forward a copy of the CRIA to the Measure Implementation Team
for monitoring purposes using the dedicated mailbox CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

If officials are not sure about whether to complete a CRIA, they should err on the side of caution and
seek advice from the Measure Implementation Team by forwarding any questions to our mailbox
CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

You may wish to cross-reference with other Impact Assessments undertaken.
NB. All CRIAs undertaken on legislation must be published. All non-legislative CRIAs will be listed on

the WG website and must be made available upon request. Ministers are however, encouraged to
publish all completed CRIAs.

Paék Page 41



mailto:CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Six Steps to Due Regard

4. Advising the
Minister &

5. Recording
and

6. Revisiting
the piece of

1. What's the
piece of work 2. Analysing the

and its impact
objective(s)?

work as and
when needed

Ministerial
decision

communicating
the outcome

Step 1. What'’s the piece of work and its objective(s)?

Development of a Revised (2015) Child Poverty Strategy for Wales

The Children and Families (Wales) Measure 2010 placed a statutory duty on Welsh
Ministers to publish a Child Poverty Strategy for Wales and to set objectives for tackling
child poverty and improving the outcomes of low income families. Welsh Ministers fulfilled
this duty when they published the 2011 Child Poverty Strategy for Wales. The 2011 Child
Poverty Strategy covers the period 2011 to 2014. As a result, the Welsh Government
issued a revised Child Poverty Strategy for a 12 week period of public consultation (6
November 2014 to 29 January 2015). The Child Poverty Strategy has been amended in
light of over 80 written responses. A final version of the Child Poverty Strategy (and a
summary of consultation responses) was published on 27 March 2015.

This revised Child Poverty Strategy reaffirms our commitment to the ambition of
eradicating child poverty by 2020. The most recent Households Below Average Income
(HBAI) data for Wales show us that 31% of children are currently living in relative income
poverty in Wales (After Housing Costs).

The Revised Child Poverty Strategy for Wales aims to tackle child poverty by delivering on
five strategic objectives. Three of these objectives were set out in our 2011 Strategy.
These objectives are focussed on reducing worklessness, increasing skills, and reducing
inequalities in the health, education and economic outcomes of children and families living
in poverty. In response to the consultation, Welsh Government has also developed two
new strategic objectives for tackling child poverty. These are:

I. To use all available levers to create a strong economy and labour market which
supports the tackling poverty agenda and reduces in-work poverty in Wales.

ii. To support families living in poverty to increase household income, through debt
and financial advice, action to address the “poverty premium” (where households
pay disproportionally more goods and services) and action to mitigate the impacts
of welfare reform.

These additional objectives provide us with an opportunity to strengthen our approach to
tackling child poverty. Jobs and growth and full-time employment opportunities for low

Pack Pag® 42




income households are essential, particularly if we are to reduce the number of children
living in workless households and also tackle rising levels of in-work poverty. Investing in
the financial inclusion agenda and providing subsidised services for those living in
disadvantaged communities is also critical. It has long been central to the Welsh
Government’s approach to mitigating the impacts of poverty. The second new objective (on
supporting households to increase their income) reflects and prioritises this work.

This revised Child Poverty Strategy should not be seen in isolation. While the Child Poverty
Strategy sets out the Welsh Government’s overall approach to tackling child poverty, action
to address the issue and to achieve better outcomes for children, young people and their
families is being taken forward through our Tackling Poverty Action Plan.

The intended beneficiaries of this strategy are children, young people and families living in
low income households. The strategy will specifically affect children and young people
living in poverty. It aims to tackle income poverty — and ensure that parents earn enough
to ensure that their children are not living in a low income household. As reflected in the
fourth strategic objective, we commit to supporting families to increase their household
income and to addressing the “poverty premium” (where low income households pay more
for good and services). Crucially, the Child Poverty Strategy also aims to improve the
educational, health and economic outcomes of children and young people living in poverty.

The Strategy is underpinned by policies and programmes for children, young people and
families that are taken forward across the Welsh Government. Within the Revised Child
Poverty Strategy, we commit to considering poverty impacts alongside equalities impacts
and the needs of those with protected characteristics. This will strengthen the links
between the poverty and equalities agenda — and help to ensure a focus on improving the
outcomes of children and young people, and their families. We also commit to working
collaboratively to ensure child poverty is considered in the development of our policies and
programmes through the completion of Children’s Rights Impact Assessments.

We know that children growing up and living in low income households are much more at
risk of having poorer health outcomes, are less likely to reach cognitive and developmental
milestones in the early years, have poorer educational attainment, are more likely to be not
in education, employment or training (NEET) between the age of 16 and 24, and more
likely to be unemployed and living in poverty as an adult. This strategy sets out how the
Welsh Government will address these issues — by taking forward policies and programmes
across all Government Departments. The Welsh Government has identified child poverty
as the main barrier towards realising and upholding children’s rights in Wales. For this
reason, we have identified the delivery of the Child Poverty Strategy as our priority
commitment in relation to the child rights agenda. In reaffirming the Welsh Government’s
commitment to the UNCRC, we will make it clear all portfolios and departments have
obligations and responsibilities in realising children’s rights.

It is important to recognise that the Welsh Government’s Child Poverty Strategy is
underpinned by individual policies, programmes and projects being taken forward by
different Welsh Government Departments. Children’s Rights Impact Assessments may
have been developed for these individual policies. The Children’s Rights Impact
Assessment for the Revised Child Poverty Strategy does not intend to highlight all of the
impacts for all of these policies (although key impacts are included). Rather — it is intended
that this CRIA will provide a high level assessment of impact. It will also include a focus on
how addressing child poverty will make an important contribution to taking forward the
children’s rights agenda in Wales.

Paék Page 43




It is also important to recognise that the 2015 Child Poverty Strategy does not stand alone.
It is directly linked to the 2013 Tackling Poverty Action Plan, which includes a strong focus
on children and young people. In particular, the 2013 Action Plan includes specific
milestones and targets for improving the outcomes of children and families living in
poverty. It is the delivery mechanism for realising the strategic objectives of the 2015 Child
Poverty Strategy. When the 2012 Action Plan was published, stakeholders expressed
concerns about the Tackling Poverty Action Plan moving away from specifically addressing
child poverty. The 2015 Child Poverty Strategy specifically highlights the link between the
Child Poverty Strategy and the Tackling Poverty Action Plan, and how and the actions and
milestones that will make a difference to the lives of children and young people in Wales. In
particular, we have developed a series of logic models, which highlight how different
policies and programmes will contribute to delivering the five strategic objectives of the
Child Poverty Strategy.

Step 2. Analysing the impact

It is important to recognise that the Welsh Government does not hold all of the levers
around tackling income poverty. Key policy levers, such as changes to tax and benefits,
are the responsibility of the UK Government. Evidence suggests that recent UK
Government welfare reforms will have a disproportionate impact on households with
children and will have a particularly negative impact on those households that are most at
risk of living in poverty — which includes households with disabled parents and / or disabled
children. Evidence suggests that child poverty will continue to rise in Wales (albeit at a
slower rate in light of some anticipated positive impacts of introducing Universal Credit).
The Welsh Government is committed mitigating these impacts, where possible and where
we hold specific policy levers.

Improving the outcomes of low income families is at the heart of the Revised Child Poverty
Strategy for Wales. The strategic objectives of the Child Poverty Strategy are designed to
have maximum positive impact for children, young people and their families who are living
in low income households. They are based on what the evidence tells us is likely to have
most impact on tackling poverty in Wales. Reflecting the levers available to the Welsh
Government, some of the intended benefits of this revised Child Poverty Strategy may not
be seen in the immediate future. Improving the outcomes of pupils eligible for Free School
Meals, for example, will play a critical role in tackling and preventing poverty — but this is
likely to be in the longer term. As a result, the revised Strategy also identifies five key
policy priorities where we commit to doing more “here and now” to support low income
households achieve better outcomes. These policy priorities are: reducing food poverty,
increasing the availability of affordable childcare, tackling in-work poverty, mitigating the
impacts of welfare reform, and housing and regeneration. Within the Child Poverty
Strategy, we commit to developing new actions and commitments for each of these
priorities. Where possible, these will be included in the Annual Report on the Tackling
Poverty Action Plan (due to be published in July 2015).

Positive Impacts for Children and Young People

We know that living in a workless household is particularly detrimental for children and
young people. Workless households are also much more at risk of living in persistent

Pack Pag¥# 44




poverty. One of the strategic objectives of the Child Poverty Strategy is to reduce the
number of children and young people living in workless households, by supporting parents
into employment and training opportunities. The Child Poverty Strategy (and the Tackling
Poverty Action Plan) includes specific reference to programmes such as Jobs Growth
Wales and the Lift Programme — which will make a positive contribution to delivering this
outcome. Work being taken forward by the Department for the Economy, Science and
Transport (EST) will also be important as they take forward policy and action to support
businesses in Wales, in order to enable and support the private sector to create further
training and employment opportunities.

European Funding streams will play a crucial role in supporting people back into
employment and training. Tackling poverty is a cross-cutting theme for all European
funding. Furthermore, the European Social Fund includes a specific focus on supporting
those furthest away from the labour marker — with projects and programmes being
developed to support people into employment. The European Social Fund also includes a
strong focus on employment and training for younger people.

The second strategic objective of the Child Poverty Strategy is to improve the skills of
parents so that they can secure well paid employment. This is because we know that in-
work poverty is a growing issue in Wales, with evidence from research funded by the
Joseph Rowntree Foundation suggesting that there are now more people living in poverty
in Wales who are working, than not working. The Revised Child Poverty Strategy
recognises how essential it is to use all available policy levers to ensure that households
who benefit from accessing training and employment opportunities are not moving from
being in out-of-work poverty, to being in in-work poverty. In January 2014, the Welsh
Government issued a new Skills Statement for Wales and in July 2014 published an
accompanying Implementation Plan. The Revised Child Poverty Strategy for Wales
references this important development — which will play a key role in delivering the second
strategic objective of the Revised Child Poverty Strategy.

The third strategic objective of the Child Poverty Strategy recognises the policy levers
available to the Welsh Government, in terms of improving the health, education and
economic outcomes of those living in poverty. Our key tackling poverty programmes
(Flying Start, Communities First, Families First, Supporting People and Vibrant and Viable
Places) will make an important contribution to delivering these outcomes. We know that
children and young people from poorer backgrounds do less well at school and are much
more at risk of becoming NEET at age 16-24 years. The Revised Child Poverty Strategy
continues the Welsh Government’'s commitment to address educational inequalities and
ensure that the outcomes of pupils eligible for Free School Meals improve at a faster rate
than for non-FSM pupils. The revised Strategy highlights Rewriting the Future, the Pupil
Deprivation Grant and Schools Challenge Cymru as key developments which will enable
us to deliver this crucial objective. Reducing health inequalities is also critical to the
tackling poverty agenda. Through action being taken forward by the Welsh Government’s
Tackling Poverty Action Plan, the Child Poverty Strategy aims to reduce the number of
babies born with a low birth weight, improve dental health and improve the healthy life
expectancy of those living in our most deprived areas of Wales. In the revised Child
Poverty Strategy, the section on delivering the third strategic objective includes specific
reference to early years and parenting, play, reducing educational inequalities, reducing
health inequalities, the role of housing and regeneration, natural resources and the
environment, and arts and culture (and how these policy areas are contributing to
improving outcomes and reducing inequalities).

Paék Page 45




The fourth strategic objective recognises the importance of jobs and growth and the role of
a strong economy, in terms of supporting the poverty agenda and helping to tackle in-work
poverty. This new objective has been included in the Revised Strategy in direct response
to the recent consultation. It will be important to explore the role that different sectors can
play in tackling poverty, and offering opportunities to young people and parents from low
income households. The Department for Economy, Science and Transport has been
exploring the role of the tourism as a sector which can provide sustainable and full time
career opportunities for young people, which will be important to tackling rural poverty.

The fifth strategic objective recognises the importance of having policies and programmes
in place that support parents to achieve better economic outcomes, increase their
household income and address the poverty premium, where low income households tend
to pay more goods and services. The Welsh Government has a strong history of investing
in the financial inclusion agenda, funding a range of different programmes — including
Better Advice Better Lives, which provides advice to families with disabilities to ensure
access to the benefits they are entitled.

Childcare is critical to delivering on the first two strategic objectives of the Revised Child
Poverty Strategy — and also makes and important contribution to ensuring our children
achieve the best possible outcomes as they grow up. For those households with childcare
needs, the lack of childcare is often cited as a key barrier, in terms of accessing
employment and training opportunities. We recognise this in our Child Poverty Strategy
and our Tackling Poverty Action Plan, which includes a strong focus on supporting people
into work and training. It is also important to recognise the role of childcare in relation to the
important contribution it can make to tackling in-work poverty. We know that in-work
poverty is a growing issue in Wales, and evidence from recent research by the Joseph
Rowntree Foundation shows us that there are now more people living in poverty who are
working, than who are not. Evidence shows us that part-working families are especially at
risk of living in in-work poverty. Supporting both parents to access full time opportunities
will be important to tackling in-work poverty and childcare plays a key role. Supporting
second earners into work (the majority of whom will be women) is especially important and
again, accessible and affordable childcare is key to delivering on this agenda. Our
Tackling Poverty Action Plan includes specific commitments around supporting the
development of the childcare network in Wales.

The role of parenting is also crucial to delivering on the child poverty agenda. The revised
Strategy recognises the importance of the home learning environment in supporting
children to achieve better outcomes — and how parenting can make a significant and
positive contribution to the lives of children and young people. We state that it is important
to ensure both parents are supported to remain positively engaged in the lines of their
children. Article 18 of the UNCRC states: Both parents have responsibility for bringing up
their children and should consider what is best for their child. Governments should help
parents by providing services to support them, especially if both parents work. Supporting
both parents to access tackling poverty programmes is therefore important.

Measures to mitigate any negative impacts of the Child Poverty Strategy

There are no intended negative impacts of the Revised Child Poverty Strategy, as the
focus is on improving the outcomes of some of our most vulnerable families and deprived
communities. However, there is a strong emphasis within the Strategy that employment is
the most sustainable (although not always guaranteed) route out of poverty. When parents
are working while their children are very young, or when parents are working outside of

Pack Pag® 46




school hours, this may mean spending less time with their children. As highlighted above,
Article 18 recognises the importance of providing services to support parents, especially
when both are working. Whilst recognising the importance of parents caring for their
children, evidence suggests that in the longer term, the negative impacts of being in
income poverty are particularly detrimental. Being in employment is highly protective
against being in relative income poverty. Evidence suggests that there are also additional
benefits of being in work for a parent (for example, improved mental health and wellbeing).

How will you know if your piece of work is a success?

The key indicator used to measure child poverty is the percentage of children living in
relative income poverty (defined as 60% of the median income) After Housing Costs. The
Welsh Government is committed to the ambition of eradicating child poverty by 2020. In
addition to this headline measure of child poverty, it is important to monitor the other
intended outcomes of this Child Poverty Strategy, particularly in terms of improving the
health, education and employment outcomes of children and families living in poverty. As
set out below, the Welsh Government will use an additional set of key population indicators
to assess progress in relation to tackling child poverty.

Have you developed an outcomes framework to measure impact?

The 2015 Child Poverty Strategy sets out a number of key population indicators for
measuring the impact of the Revised Child Poverty Strategy for Wales. This includes
indicators on the number of children living in workless households / skills / health
inequalities / educational attainment / number of young people who are not in employment,
education or training (NEET) aged 16-24. These are also the key population indicators

that underpin our Tackling Poverty Action Plan for Wales, which includes specific targets
for many of these policy areas. The specific indicators are listed below:

e % of children living in relative income poverty (After Housing Costs).

e 9% of children living in relative income poverty where at least one adult is working (After
Housing Costs).

e 9% of children living in workless households.
e 9% of working age adults with no qualifications.
e 9% of working age adults holding qualifications at levels 2, 3 or 4 and above.

e 9% of children living in low income households who are reaching health, social and
cognitive development milestones when entering formal education.

Paék Page 47




e % of 7 year old pupils eligible for Free School Meals achieving the expected level at
the end of the Foundation Phase.

e % of pupils eligible for Free Schools Meals who achieve the Level 2 threshold including
English / Welsh and Maths at Key Stage 4.

e 9% of young people aged 16-18 who are NEET.

e 9% of young people aged 19-24 who are NEET.
e % of babies (live births) born with a low birth weight (defined as under 2,500 grams).

Within the revised Child Poverty Strategy, we have mapped across these indicators to the
five objectives of the Child Poverty Strategy (as part of the five logic models). As
highlighted earlier, these logical models also identify the relevant articles of the UNCRC

We will report on the child poverty indicators as part of the Annual Report on the Tackling
Poverty Action Plan. The next Annual Report will be published in July 2015.

Have you considered the short, medium and long term outcomes?

Yes. Evidence from our recent evaluation of the Welsh Government's Child Poverty
Strategy for Wales suggests that the approach we are taking in Wales is likely to make an
important contribution to tackling poverty, but that this is likely to be in the longer term. In
light of the findings from the evaluation, the Revised Child Poverty Strategy therefore
recognises the importance of continuing to look for opportunities that improve the
circumstances and outcomes of low income families here and now, as well as opportunities
that ensure we prevent children currently growing up in poverty from becoming low income
households in the future. For example, the 2015 Child Poverty Strategy specifically
recognises that food poverty is increasing amongst low income households in Wales.
Similarly, the Revised Strategy recognises that access to advice services, income
maximisation schemes (e.g. Better Advice Better Lives), projects supporting improved
financial literacy and affordable lending (e.g. Credit Unions) and initiatives such as the
Discretionary Assistance Fund can make an important contribution to mitigating the
impacts of living in a low income households.

Other findings from the 2014 Evaluation of the Welsh Government’s Child Poverty Strategy
are also relevant. For example, the evaluation highlights that current policies and
programmes are not necessarily at the scale needed to affect change at the required level.
The Revised Strategy therefore recognises the importance of looking for further
opportunities that will enable us to deliver change — and the population level. The Revised
Strategy highlights potential policies that could make an important contribution such as
housing and regeneration investments, where the use of a Community Benefits approach
can provide crucial employment and training opportunities for those that need these most.

Pack Pag#48




Crucially, the 2015 Child Poverty Strategy also recognises the importance of continuing to
develop our understanding of what it will take to eradicate child poverty. In particular, it
includes a commitment to undertake further analysis of the outcomes the strategy is
looking to deliver and to use this assessment to develop interim outcomes and milestones
for tackling child poverty. This analysis will form the basis of the Welsh Government’s
strategic approach to tackling child poverty and future work to improve the outcomes of
children and young people in low income households, being taken forward by different
Departments. An assessment and modelling of key trends will help us understand what
needs to be achieved and by when, if we are to eradicate child poverty. In particular, we
will use this analysis to determine what this means in terms of fewer children in workless
households, supporting people into employment, supporting second earners into work,
fewer young people who are NEET, tackling health and educational inequalities and
increasing the number of adults with basic skills.

Do you need to engage with children & young people and/or stakeholders to seek their
views using consultation or participatory methods?

Yes. The Welsh Government remains committed to taking forward a collaborative
approach to tackling child poverty, recognising the critical role to be played by Local
Authorities and other public bodies hamed in the Children and Families (Wales) Measure
2010. In addition to the requirements of the Measure, we know that the third sector and
private sector can also make a significant contribution to reducing child poverty, including
offering volunteer placements and jobs.

It is particularly important that Local Authorities and the wider public sector consider the
2015 Child Poverty Strategy when reviewing their own Child Poverty Strategies and
objectives. This approach will build on the unique situation in Wales where the Welsh
Government, Local Authorities and other public bodies are working to the same objectives
to eradicate child poverty.

Consulting, listening and acting on the views of children and young people is essential and
the 2015 Child Poverty Strategy includes a commitment to involve the participation of
young people in the ongoing development of our Tacking Poverty Action Plan. Officials in
the Tackling Poverty Division are engaged with Children in Wales, who have been funded
under the Children and Families Delivery Grant, to ensure the participation of children and
young people in the decision making processes of Government. Work will be taken
forward to ensure that the actions underpinning our Tackling Poverty Action Plan are
informed by children and young people themselves.

The Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty will continue to meet with the End
Child Poverty Network and the Welsh Government’s Tackling Poverty External Advisory
Group (TPEAG) to ensure their ongoing involvement with developing the Welsh
Government’s approach to tackling poverty.

Do you need to produce child friendly versions of proposals/consultations?

A children and young people’s version of the Consultation Document was published in
November 2015. This was well received by children and young people, as well those
organisations which support them. As a result, the Welsh Government will also be
publishing a children and young people’s version of the 2015 revised Strategy on the
Welsh Government website, on 27 March 2015.

Paék Page 49




Step 3. How does your piece of work support and promote children’s rights?
Which UNCRC articles are most relevant to the piece of work?

Improving the outcomes of children and young people from low income backgrounds is
central to delivering on children’s rights in Wales. Article 26 of the UNCRC (children, either
through their guardians or directly, have the right to help from the government if they are
poor or in need) and Article 27 (children have the right to a standard of living that is good
enough to meet their physical and mental needs) are specifically focussed on addressing
income poverty and material deprivation. The right for every child to a standard of living
adequate for their physical, mental, spiritual, moral and social development is a key
element. Governments should provide material assistance and support programmes,
particularly with regard to food, clothing and housing.

Other relevant articles of the UNCRC include:

Article 2. The Convention applied to anyone, whatever their race, religion, abilities,
whatever they think or say and whatever type of family they come from.

Article 3 (Best interests of the child): The best interests of children must be the primary
concern in making decisions that may affect them. All adults should do what is best for
children. When adults make decisions, they should think about how their decisions will
affect children. This particularly applies to budget, policy and law makers.

Article 6 (Right of life): All children have the right of life. Governments should ensure
children survive and develop healthily.

Article 12 (Respect for the views of the child): When adults are making decisions that
affect children, children have the right to say what they think should happen and have their
opinions taken into account.

Article 18 (Parental responsibilities; state assistance): Both parents share
responsibility for bringing up their children, and should always consider what is best for
each child. Governments must respect the responsibility of parents for providing
appropriate guidance to their children — the Convention does not take responsibility for
children away from their parents and give more authority to governments. It places a
responsibility on governments to provide support services to parents, especially if both
parents work outside the home.

Article 24 (Right to health care): Children have the right to good quality health care and
to clean water, nutritious food and a clean environment so they will stay healthy. Rich
countries should help poorer countries achieve this.

Article 28 (Right to education): All children have the right to a primary education, which
should be free. Wealthy countries should help poorer countries achieve this right. The
Convention places a high value on education. Young people should be encouraged to
reach the highest level of education of which they are capable.

Article 29 (Goals of education): Children’s education should develop each child’'s
personality, talents and abilities to the fullest.

Pack Pag® 50




Article 31 (Leisure, play and culture): Children have the right to relax and play, and to
join in a wide range of cultural, artistic and other recreational activities.

It is important to recognise and highlight the links between the individual articles of the
UNCRC and how these specifically relate to what we are trying to achieve through the
Child Poverty Strategy. Within the revised Child Poverty Strategy, we have developed a
series of “logic models” which demonstrate how different policies and programmes are
contributing to delivering the five key objectives of the strategy. The articles of the UNCRC
which are most relevant to the delivery of these objectives have been identified within the
logical models themselves.

Article 36 (activities which harm development): Children should be protected from any
activities which could harm their development.

How are you improving the way children and young people access their rights?

It is important to recognise that being in poverty is a fundamental barrier to children and
young people accessing their rights and achieving better outcomes. We know that children
growing up and living in low income households are much more at risk of having poorer
health outcomes, are less likely to reach cognitive and developmental milestones in the
early years, have poorer educational attainment, are more likely to be not in education,
employment or training (NEET) between the age of 16 and 24, and more likely to be
unemployed and living in poverty as an adult.

The direct link between tackling child poverty and the UNCRC is set out within the Welsh
Government’'s Tackling Poverty Action Plan. The Action Plan is clear the Welsh
Government approaches tackling child poverty using the UNCRC as a basis, recognising
tackling poverty is as much about improving children’s wellbeing as it is about addressing
income poverty. A child rights based approach links the wellbeing of children with the
wellbeing of parents and families and puts support for families at the heart of policies to
tackle child poverty. Whilst this Strategy recognises child poverty is a direct reflection of the
poverty of their parents (and hence the emphasis on increasing household income and
access to employment), we also understand and acknowledge the child as a rights bearer
who has specific needs in the here and now. These rights, whilst contributing to improving
the position of their families and communities, may also extend beyond the family.

The Annual Report on the Tackling Poverty Action Plan provides us with the opportunity to
take forward actions and commitments to address new and emerging issues relating to
children and young people. At the same time, ensuring we have due regard to the UNCRC
as we develop policies and programmes to support children and young people will be
critical to addressing child poverty and improving outcomes. The completion of Children’s
Rights Impact Assessments (CRIAs) by Welsh Government Departments provides an ideal
opportunity to link both the children’s rights and child poverty agendas. We will continue to
work collaboratively to ensure child poverty is considered in the development of our
policies and programmes through the completion of Children’s Rights Impact
Assessments. The Welsh Government has identified child poverty as the main barrier
towards realising and upholding children’s rights in Wales. For this reason, we have
identified the delivery of the Child Poverty Strategy as our priority commitment in relation to
the child rights agenda. In reaffirming the Welsh Government's commitment to the
UNCRC, we will make it clear all portfolios and departments have obligations and
responsibilities in realising children’s rights.

Paék Page 51




What aspects of children’s lives will be affected by the proposal?

The Child Poverty Strategy aims to deliver a number of positive impacts for children and
young people (and their parents) who are living in poverty. Most crucially, the strategy aims
to reduce the number of households living in income poverty — to ensure that families have
enough money to secure a standard of living that is good enough to meet their physical
and mental needs. The Revised Strategy is also underpinned by a number of other existing
strategies — that all play a role in improving the outcomes of children and young people.
For example, Building a Brighter Future: Early Years and Childcare Plan sets out the
Welsh Government’s approach and key actions that will contribute to improving the lives of
younger children (aged 0-7 years) in Wales. Likewise, Fairer Health Outcomes for All is the
Welsh Government strategic document for reducing health inequalities and includes a
strong focus on improving the health outcomes of children and young people. More
recently, the Welsh Government published a new strategy — Rewriting the Future — which
aims to reduce the inequalities that currently exist in the educational outcomes of children
and young people. This includes a specific focus on the role of schools and other key
partners to improve the educational outcomes of pupils eligible for Free School Meals, at a
faster rate than pupils not eligible for Free School Meals.

What are the main issues that the CRIA should focus on? Does the piece of work help to
maximise the outcomes within the articles of the UNCRC?

The third strategic objective of the Revised Child Poverty Strategy is to improve the
educational, health and economic outcomes of children and young people living in poverty.
This will help to ensure that children and young people currently living in poverty do not go
on to be poor as adults. Educational attainment is critical to delivering on this agenda. We
know that improving the educational outcomes of pupils eligible for Free School Meals will
mean that they are much more likely to secure training and employment opportunities as
they enter adulthood. Being in employment is critical to tackling poverty in both the short
and long term.

If the Welsh Government is able to deliver on its three strategic objectives (of reducing
worklessness, increasing skills and reducing inequalities) it will make a significant
contribution to tackling poverty. The ongoing monitoring of the individual policies and
programmes underpinning the Child Poverty Strategy (and associated Tackling Poverty
Action Plan) is critical. Officials in the Tackling Poverty Action Plan will do this via the
Welsh Government’s Tackling Poverty Implementation Board.

The Tackling Poverty Implementation Board (chaired by the Minister for Communities and
Tackling Poverty) oversees delivery of the Tackling Poverty Action Plan — and the policies
and programmes that contribute towards delivering these population outcomes. A key role
of the Implementation Board is holding different departments to account for the actions
underpinning the Plan. Departments are responsible for reporting on progress — with
performance measures in place to monitor whether children and families are “better off” as
a result of the support and intervention they have received. The Welsh Government will
continue to report on the performance of individual policies and programmes as part of the
Programme for Government and the Annual Report on the Tackling Poverty Action Plan,
thereby ensuring a specific (and ongoing) focus on delivering better outcomes for children
and young people living in poverty.

Pack Page 52




Step 4. Advising the Minister and Ministerial decision

Officials in the Tackling Poverty Division set out proposals regarding the development of
the Revised Child Poverty Strategy in a submission to the previous Deputy Minister for
Tackling Poverty and the current Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty.

The Deputy Minister agreed to overall approach at the end of July 2014. Following the
Cabinet reshuffle, the Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty agreed in October to
the publication of the Revised Child Poverty Strategy for a 12 week consultation period on
6 November 2014. On 9 March, Cabinet agreed to the publication of the final 2015
Strategy on 27 March.

Within the submissions to Ministers, officials have highlighted how the Child Poverty
Strategy links with the relevant articles of the UNCRC and places considerable emphasis
improving the outcomes of children and families living in low income households.

Tackling child poverty is a cross-cutting issue (and a key priority for the Welsh
Government). Officials will continue to amend and adapt the Children’s Rights Impact
Assessment on the Child Poverty Strategy to reflect new commitments being taken forward
(for example, as part of the Annual Report on the Tackling Poverty Action Plan) and new
evidence on child poverty in Wales.

Step 5. Recording and communicating the outcome
Final version to be retained on i-share

Evidence should be retained that supports:

How the duty has been complied with (Steps 1-3 above)

The analysis that was carried out (Steps 1-3 above)

The options that were developed and explored (Steps 1- 3 above)

How have the findings / outcomes been communicated? (Step 4 above)

‘Tells the story’ of how the assessment has been undertaken and the results (Step 4 above)

When developing the Revised Child Poverty Strategy for Wales, officials in the Tackling
Poverty Division have complied with the duty within the Rights of Children and Young
Persons (Wales) Measure 2011 to have due regard to the Articles of the UNCRC when
developing new policy. Article 26 of the UNCRC and Article 27 are specifically focussed on
addressing income poverty and material deprivation.

As highlighted in Steps 1-3, this Child Poverty Strategy will make an important contribution
to a number of articles from the UNCRC. In particular, the Child Poverty Strategy looks to
tackle income poverty and reduce the number of children living in low income households.
This directly links to Article 26 and Article 27 of the UNCRC.

The strategic objectives of the Child Poverty Strategy have been developed to ensure
maximum positive impact for low income families — and to ensure that the Welsh
Government is using all available levers to tackle child poverty and improve the outcomes

Paék Page 53




of children and young people living in deprived communities. These strategic objectives are
based on what the evidence tells us around where we can have most impact, in terms of
tackling income poverty and improving outcomes.

This Children’s Rights Impact Assessment is underpinned by what the evidence tells us
about child poverty in Wales.

Step 6. Revisiting the piece of work as and when needed

In revisiting the piece of work, consider any monitoring, evaluation or data collection that has been
undertaken:

Has your piece of work has had the intended impact as set out in Step 2.

Have you engaged with stakeholders to discuss how the policy or practice is working.

If not, are changes required.

Identify where improvements can be made to reduce any negative impact.

Identify any opportunities to promote children’s rights, bearing in mind any additional availability of
resources at this time.

Officials in the Tackling Poverty Division revisited the Children’s Rights Impact Assessment
during the consultation period. The Child Poverty Strategy and the CRIA was amended in
light of consultation responses, and the decision to develop new strategic objectives for
tackling child poverty in Wales. We will continue to strengthen and build on the CRIA for
the Revised Child Poverty Strategy as we develop new actions and commitments as part
of the Annual Report on the Tackling Poverty Action Plan (see below).

Budgets

Pack Page 54




Please give any details:

When the Revised Child Poverty Strategy was submitted to Ministers, it was recognised
that further analysis of budgets associated with the Child Poverty Strategy would be
undertaken. Within the Revised Strategy, there is also a commitment to develop new
actions and commitments for five key priorities. If possible, these new actions and
commitments will be set out in the Annual Report on the Tackling Poverty Action Plan.
Further information will be included in this CRIA on additional funding allocated for new
actions, initiatives, policies or programmes, as these are developed. We commit to
reviewing this CRIA following the publication of the Annual Report in July 2015.

Monitoring & Review

Yes

July 2015, following the
publication of the Annual
Report on the Welsh
Government’s Tackling
Poverty Action Plan.

See next page for a
Summary List of the
UNCRC articles

Paék Page 55



Walas

st out how childeen shoudd be treated

THE UNITED NATIONS CONVENTION
ON THE RIGHTS OF THE CHILD

www.uncrcletsgetitright.co.uk

The Linitmd Mations Comeention on the Rights of the Chid is on infernational ogreement fhat prodects e human
rights of the chidren under #i2 oge of 18. On Vs December 199, the United Kingdom of Greot Britain and Marhem
Ielond ormaly agred o moke s that every chid in the: UK has ol the: rights os isted in the convention. The YWelsh
Ciowernmant has shown s mmmitment o the comention by adopting it os the basis for policy making for chidren in

Hlicgether them ore 54 orfides In the comvention. Artides 43-54 ore cbout how adulis and govermments should werk
together ko moke sure ol chideen o entifed io their rights. The nkrmasion coniained here s ohout ariickes 1-42 which

Article 1 dedor that afect them, ond ks hoe ter  Article 22
Everyora under 1B yeors of oom hes ol B opriofs ok il gt Tralcresn whes cor iz 2
rights in Bis Comemnfion. Article B ahecaded bt swred rights. o bxsar in
el cowniry.
Articls 2 v bt right b gt el b sherr
hcﬂmmqnphh wholir  Pommofion os long s the omaion ket Article 233
mﬂ ummm dharaaging bo B of b o ik whes hevvar crny kind e sty sheadd
n-u:,-ard Ty o fewily thasy cores Article 14 Fumom sl comm o sgprert s e thesy con
ik Perv th right 1 ik ond bl ool ondinc e
Article 3 " Mﬂqﬁt ﬂprmumrdgh- PrtlclaMEL
A ergarisabon, arcamiad wilth dhidnn Soukd @ long o5 iy om rol Seping ko Tt b iy il
et Iowerch what &bt fer each chid mm:gﬁ-uﬂghuhtwﬂﬂgﬁ mudbdﬂﬂu.rﬁnhﬁduda
i wiverrmit s et thisy will shosy Paclitey
Article 4 Bk coirtrins shoubd ek poone courdtic
Coevwierrvenivhs shooubd ks s rights Article 15 i tha
erenledrda bes bl Chilchen berv the right i meed logather and
ho o g ondd epbctions s lorg s Article 25
Article 5 His choss ot sl ol ol freem arin ik whes e sk it by el
Grevommoroarvhs shoukd respact the rights and i rights custheariby rtbur thesn tsr gosnts shed b
resporalblfie of fomibes o dnect ond i st rmvisd gy,
i childor 5o Bt o Thy grow, they leem Article 14
e st P ights. posarly ﬂﬁmmn@thpmﬂ-mm;ﬂuﬂdgfﬁ
Hham from affeds ﬂﬂﬂid Thair Cmasrrrmosst bt prcsich scdics frecaviny
Article & gmdmmrmn endther  or th chidhen of Fambat i e
Al children Ferva tha right of e Gowsmments
shoadd ansuns that amn*dhhp Article 27
Pk, Mdﬂﬁ.mu Edﬁmmn@thﬂﬂwﬁdd
v F slcbb infornotion H Ty
f.lrﬂdgl?;uﬂn ia'nhmrﬁdnihﬁm_mdﬂn;ii mﬂmw
chichen right Iy o lagaly rawipaypsars sheukd normedion ek wha cormal afiord b provda fis
h%:bn arnd  chibdhen ao ondesdand ard shoudd pot
m:?mhmudmhmpuﬁbu promalte moksnials Bk could herm s, Article 28
Tor by s prswnts J'LI'HBI-EIB G&mmn@rhwﬂﬂmﬂm
shoaded sieapaief childin's humaon
Article 8 ) ﬁﬁ“‘””' hrrgiﬂﬁ ﬁm-,f.d.mmum
Grevmmorearrhs shoukd respact chiden’s right o hld-i:brnﬁd mgﬂﬂwmwm
a Fuisial, & bty ond Tamdy Hes uhdhmdlduﬁmimﬂn#ﬁﬂhlzh
% srvices o suppart
Article 9 ot g by Article 29
MMHHWMM Eibuczstion shosdd dheveateg wach crkds
pmrm...;huuhﬁumgmdh Article 17 - pesrssrelty end intersts s s Rl B sheoukd
ﬁFﬂ'ﬂIl.n'ﬂ'l'.‘ll‘? neghacting  Gennminants shoukd s ot chiden o snczrgn childen I respiec! Ther posnt
-:ﬁ:dluuﬂ. i shery i eoevicct weth m“gawwmﬁwmm et e cad e e k
Frey n 1 ¥ o
o st bt This it burt ths bl oy s whes b xbar B Mdﬁiu R
a ] L
Articls 10 Articls 20 e Lo Wt
Fiarilis whe botr in st contrios shod b (ildren wha connol be koked ohier by it fhae one shomd by the mojorly o pecpls in
abervetnd fis v Babwemin oo covnfiies s Mhrhmﬂhbdudn‘l‘upmhf Hhw cxasriry or red
Heest pewarets e chidnn con sy In cordadt of wrhey rmapinct thasr reslgion,
gl Bod lecalher o o oy, ﬁrﬂdﬂ;ﬂ. I
a =] L
Article T Article 21 o e
Coevemmaeaivs should hoke sheps o chikdear Wl chldien o ko bied fhe Fes? conasen
sty e sl o i v cowmniry st ot whicd b bt for them, The some s Article 32
sheadd apply whather the chiker one adopted  The Govmmant shoud protect dhide fram
Article 12 s Thedn vy whisrs iy vl beorn o token miﬂdn?ununﬁil‘nmﬂﬂ
ko Perwoss thesr right b scsy wht thary s b I cornctbnr cowndy.
thirk o hesppoan, whan adils s making

\:_

Pack Pag® 56

Liywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Govermment

Article 33

moefugen  The Goverment shoud of
prohicing chidnen mm g,

PTIEE-E:E:M e Fresm
undnh.ur pretet

Article 35
T Crowirrrvit bl rroskis sor Thot chikdean
e o abdechind of sokd

Article 36
(hibcran sheukd ba
it

Article 37

Ol ey bl this b shocidel st b
tractid cruady. shvadel|irod beie piif I gortaan
mdﬁﬂnﬁﬂhﬂbﬂn
coniact with ther iomles

Article 38
%ﬂ:‘rrm‘h.dﬁklmlah- chidms unde

from oy
tresirn Hssi it g

T e Chilcbren i wer 2onas
recvi peecicl prolection.
Article 39
ik wehies heswa b ragghactind o csbo ]
shoadd mostvin spacil ek o nasiom thier seli
[T

Article 40

Chilchen whe o ocosed of brecking the low

bk b Tl e binuie

flor ik o i ot ol
winhoass ofbencn,

Article 4]
i the bews of cousiry proled
childn Esttr e ths crbichin, of B

Cswisnfisn, Hhaih st kv shoadd shery.

Article 42
T Crowirrrvint stk rraskis e Cornifion:
v b ol s cnel chilen.

For further inormation on the Lniked
Metions Comention an fhe Rights
of the Chiled plesases visit; The Wildh
Crwerriment's LMCRC Webste

woannuncrehetastitight ook

Che - The Metional Hormation and

warnechcoring ek nesws!



ANNEX B4
Children’s Rights Impact Assessment: Children and Families Delivery Grant

Children’s Rights Impact Assessment (CRIA) Template

Title / Piece Children and Families Delivery Grant

of work:

EFeIatedbSF/ SF-JC0456-14 Replacement for the Children and Families Organisation Grant: Children
number

(if applicable) and Family Delivery Grant

Name of

Official: Robert Edwards

Department: | Children Young People and Families Division.

Date: 24 March 2014

Signature:

Please complete the CRIA and retain it for your records on iShare. You may be asked to provide this
document at a later stage to evidence that you have complied with the duty to have due regard to
children’s rights e.g. Freedom of Information access requests, monitoring purposes or to inform
reporting to the NAfW.

Upon completion you should also forward a copy of the CRIA to the Measure Implementation Team
for monitoring purposes using the dedicated mailbox CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

If officials are not sure about whether to complete a CRIA, they should err on the side of caution and
seek advice from the Measure Implementation Team by forwarding any questions to our mailbox
CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

You may wish to cross-reference with other Impact Assessments undertaken.
NB. All CRIAs undertaken on legislation must be published. All non-legislative CRIAs will be listed on

the WG website and must be made available upon request. Ministers are however, encouraged to
publish all completed CRIAs.

Paék Page 57



mailto:CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Six Steps to Due Regard

4. Advising the 5. Recording
Minister & and

6. Revisiting
the piece of

1. What's the
piece of work 2. Analysing the

work as and
when needed

and its impact
objective(s)?

Ministerial communicating
decision the outcome

Step 1. What’s the piece of work and its objective(s)?

The Children and Families Delivery Grant (CFDG) will replace the current Children and Family
Organisation Grant (CFOG).

An independent review in 2011 of the CFOG Family Support and Childcare and Play strands
considered that too many organisations were funded through the grant. The report also considered
that monitoring arrangements by the Welsh Government were weak and relationships insufficiently
dynamic. Following further consultation with stakeholders a decision was reached to move to a
more delivery focussed funding model.

The grant, to Third Sector organisations, will be to drive outcomes in five specific priority areas that
complement and add value to the Welsh Government’s Family Support agenda. The grant will
support families in practical, measurable ways, with a strong emphasis on outcomes that will
directly impact on children through its focus on participation and engagement, childcare, policy and

play.
The CFDG will commence 1 October 2014 and run for 36 months. Funding will be £2.8 million per
12- month period. The intention is to award 5 grants to address each of the following 5 stated
priorities:

e Families across Wales can access affordable, quality childcare;

e Increased opportunities for children in Wales to play;

o Families are informed about financial and other practical support that builds resilience;

o ‘Seldom heard’ families are engaged and access programmes, support and services;
and

o Policy and strategic development in relation to Children, Young People and Families is
supported and systemic opportunities for Children and Young People to participate in
decisions that affect them and have their voices heard is increased.

Pack Page58



Step 2. Analysing the impact

The Children and Families Delivery Grant is specifically about better outcomes for children, young
people and their families. It is about ensuring delivery on the ground that will be seen and felt. The
Minister is clear that all grant activity must be able to evidence that its delivery is making a positive
difference to those it intends to affect.

Each application for funding will include a section which outlines the arrangements for monitoring
and reporting within the project. The Welsh Government is recommending a Results Based
Accountability approach to this activity. Applicants will be expected to outline how they intend to
monitor progress of the project and respond to unexpected problems, provide details of milestones
and timescales and project tolerances. As part of this requirement applicants will be required to
state how they will measure the achievements of the project. They will be required to include details
of proposed surveys and research activities and whether or not they will be carried out by
independent assessors.

Successful applicants will be expected to submit a quarterly grant claim form which will include a
requirement to report progress against agreed outputs. Annual progress reports will also be
required.

At project end applicants will be required to evaluate the actual impact and outcomes of their
project in accordance with the methodology outlined in their application. This will include the
requirement to submit an evaluation report to the Welsh Government within 6 months of the end of
the project.

The collaborative approach that this grant encourages is intended to provide children, young
people and families with a more coherent service through organisations working together move
from focussing on services and process to focussing on delivery.

Step 3. How does your piece of work support and promote children’s rights?

Every priority area of this grant is intended to further children’s rights . The grant focusses on
making rights a reality for many children, young people and families. The range of activities
which could be covered by the grant is potentially wide. Successful applications could include
projects which range from the provision of high level over arching services to the sector as whole
to on the ground delivery of services directly to children and their families.

The Grant focusses on supporting the following UNCRC Articles/themes:

Article 3. The success of the programme will be monitored closely and evaluated with a primary
focus being the best interests of children and young people. The measurement of Outcomes and
impact is an integral part of the grant programme.

Article 5 . Provide Parenting activities so parents learn how to bring their children up in a
structured and supportive environment.

Article 6. The programme will potentially support Health Visitor activities with the flying Start
programme. This will increase the likely hood of children surviving through the identification of
domestic risk and help ensure they grow up healthy.

Article 12. Provide child advocacy services to ensure children’s voices are heard.

Article 18. Support programmes that help both parents have input into the development of their
children, Whether the parents are together or living separately.

Paék Page 59




Article 24. Increased Health care through support for the Flying Start enhanced health visitor
service.

Article 26. The primary aim of the programme is to tackle poverty using an early intervention
model wherever possible. £8.4million is being made available across a 36 month period to
support the aims of the grant.

Article 29. Language and Play are essential components of divisional activities. The new grant
can provide additional support in this area. Early interventions allow the child to develop both in
terms of their personality and linguistic abilities making them more sociable and amenable to
engaging more closely with the education system.

Article 31. Play activities are eligible for funding under the CFDG .

Priority area 5 is specifically intended to attract proposals that increase and realise opportunities
for children and young people in Wales to have their voices heard (article 12). The following
eligible activity was identified in the application guidance:

¢ enabling children and young people to have a voice in the workings and developments of
the Welsh Government;

¢ the collective voices of children and young people from local forums are heard nationally
by Ministers;

e ensuring that children and young people, and those who work with them, are aware of
children’s right to participation as set out in the UNCRC; and

e promotion of meaningful and effective participation through the sharing of good practice.

The range of activities which could be covered by the grant is potentially wide. Successful
applications could include projects which range from the provision of high level over arching
services to the sector as whole to on the ground delivery of services directly to children and their
families.

Step 4. Advising the Minister and Ministerial decision

Ministerial advice was provided under submission:

SF-JC0456-14 Replacement for the Children and Family Organisation Grant. - Children and Family
Delivery Grant

The Minister has approved the recommendation of the submission.

Step 5. Recording and communicating the outcome
Final version to be retained on i-share

Documentation relating to the development of the grant can be found on iShare under reference:
zA745098.

Pack Pag® 60




Step 6. Revisiting the piece of work as and when needed
The grant commences October 2014 following a grant assessment panel in June 2014.
Reviews of the programme will take place on an annual basis and reviews of project
progress on a quarterly basis. Each successful applicant will be assigned an account
manager to monitor progress.

Budgets

Please give any details:

Tackling Poverty Budgets are expected to increase over the 3 year life span of the new grant. There
will however be some adjustment of priorities within the main funding Programmes to
accommodate changing priorities. The CFDG budget will be similar to the current CFOG grant
which it replaces with an annual budget of approx. £2.8m available to support the funded projects.

Monitoring & Review

See next page for a
Summary List of the
UNCRC articles

Paék Page 61



Walas

st out how childeen shoudd be treated

THE UNITED NATIONS CONVENTION
ON THE RIGHTS OF THE CHILD

www.uncrcletsgetitright.co.uk

The Linitmd Mations Comeention on the Rights of the Chid is on infernational ogreement fhat prodects e human
rights of the chidren under #i2 oge of 18. On Vs December 199, the United Kingdom of Greot Britain and Marhem
Ielond ormaly agred o moke s that every chid in the: UK has ol the: rights os isted in the convention. The YWelsh
Ciowernmant has shown s mmmitment o the comention by adopting it os the basis for policy making for chidren in

Hlicgether them ore 54 orfides In the comvention. Artides 43-54 ore cbout how adulis and govermments should werk
together ko moke sure ol chideen o entifed io their rights. The nkrmasion coniained here s ohout ariickes 1-42 which

Article 1 dedor that afect them, ond ks hoe ter  Article 22
Everyora under 1B yeors of oom hes ol B opriofs ok il gt Tralcresn whes cor iz 2
rights in Bis Comemnfion. Article B ahecaded bt swred rights. o bxsar in
el cowniry.
Articls 2 v bt right b gt el b sherr
hcﬂmmqnphh wholir  Pommofion os long s the omaion ket Article 233
mﬂ ummm dharaaging bo B of b o ik whes hevvar crny kind e sty sheadd
n-u:,-ard Ty o fewily thasy cores Article 14 Fumom sl comm o sgprert s e thesy con
ik Perv th right 1 ik ond bl ool ondinc e
Article 3 " Mﬂqﬁt ﬂprmumrdgh- PrtlclaMEL
A ergarisabon, arcamiad wilth dhidnn Soukd @ long o5 iy om rol Seping ko Tt b iy il
et Iowerch what &bt fer each chid mm:gﬁ-uﬂghuhtwﬂﬂgﬁ mudbdﬂﬂu.rﬁnhﬁduda
i wiverrmit s et thisy will shosy Paclitey
Article 4 Bk coirtrins shoubd ek poone courdtic
Coevwierrvenivhs shooubd ks s rights Article 15 i tha
erenledrda bes bl Chilchen berv the right i meed logather and
ho o g ondd epbctions s lorg s Article 25
Article 5 His choss ot sl ol ol freem arin ik whes e sk it by el
Grevommoroarvhs shoukd respact the rights and i rights custheariby rtbur thesn tsr gosnts shed b
resporalblfie of fomibes o dnect ond i st rmvisd gy,
i childor 5o Bt o Thy grow, they leem Article 14
e st P ights. posarly ﬂﬁmmn@thpmﬂ-mm;ﬂuﬂdgfﬁ
Hham from affeds ﬂﬂﬂid Thair Cmasrrrmosst bt prcsich scdics frecaviny
Article & gmdmmrmn endther  or th chidhen of Fambat i e
Al children Ferva tha right of e Gowsmments
shoadd ansuns that amn*dhhp Article 27
Pk, Mdﬂﬁ.mu Edﬁmmn@thﬂﬂwﬁdd
v F slcbb infornotion H Ty
f.lrﬂdgl?;uﬂn ia'nhmrﬁdnihﬁm_mdﬂn;ii mﬂmw
chichen right Iy o lagaly rawipaypsars sheukd normedion ek wha cormal afiord b provda fis
h%:bn arnd  chibdhen ao ondesdand ard shoudd pot
m:?mhmudmhmpuﬁbu promalte moksnials Bk could herm s, Article 28
Tor by s prswnts J'LI'HBI-EIB G&mmn@rhwﬂﬂmﬂm
shoaded sieapaief childin's humaon
Article 8 ) ﬁﬁ“‘””' hrrgiﬂﬁ ﬁm-,f.d.mmum
Grevmmorearrhs shoukd respact chiden’s right o hld-i:brnﬁd mgﬂﬂwmwm
a Fuisial, & bty ond Tamdy Hes uhdhmdlduﬁmimﬂn#ﬁﬂhlzh
% srvices o suppart
Article 9 ot g by Article 29
MMHHWMM Eibuczstion shosdd dheveateg wach crkds
pmrm...;huuhﬁumgmdh Article 17 - pesrssrelty end intersts s s Rl B sheoukd
ﬁFﬂ'ﬂIl.n'ﬂ'l'.‘ll‘? neghacting  Gennminants shoukd s ot chiden o snczrgn childen I respiec! Ther posnt
-:ﬁ:dluuﬂ. i shery i eoevicct weth m“gawwmﬁwmm et e cad e e k
Frey n 1 ¥ o
o st bt This it burt ths bl oy s whes b xbar B Mdﬁiu R
a ] L
Articls 10 Articls 20 e Lo Wt
Fiarilis whe botr in st contrios shod b (ildren wha connol be koked ohier by it fhae one shomd by the mojorly o pecpls in
abervetnd fis v Babwemin oo covnfiies s Mhrhmﬂhbdudn‘l‘upmhf Hhw cxasriry or red
Heest pewarets e chidnn con sy In cordadt of wrhey rmapinct thasr reslgion,
gl Bod lecalher o o oy, ﬁrﬂdﬂ;ﬂ. I
a =] L
Article T Article 21 o e
Coevemmaeaivs should hoke sheps o chikdear Wl chldien o ko bied fhe Fes? conasen
sty e sl o i v cowmniry st ot whicd b bt for them, The some s Article 32
sheadd apply whather the chiker one adopted  The Govmmant shoud protect dhide fram
Article 12 s Thedn vy whisrs iy vl beorn o token miﬂdn?ununﬁil‘nmﬂﬂ
ko Perwoss thesr right b scsy wht thary s b I cornctbnr cowndy.
thirk o hesppoan, whan adils s making

\:_

Pack Pag® 62

Liywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Govermment

Article 33

moefugen  The Goverment shoud of
prohicing chidnen mm g,

PTIEE-E:E:M e Fresm
undnh.ur pretet

Article 35
T Crowirrrvit bl rroskis sor Thot chikdean
e o abdechind of sokd

Article 36
(hibcran sheukd ba
it

Article 37

Ol ey bl this b shocidel st b
tractid cruady. shvadel|irod beie piif I gortaan
mdﬁﬂnﬁﬂhﬂbﬂn
coniact with ther iomles

Article 38
%ﬂ:‘rrm‘h.dﬁklmlah- chidms unde

from oy
tresirn Hssi it g

T e Chilcbren i wer 2onas
recvi peecicl prolection.
Article 39
ik wehies heswa b ragghactind o csbo ]
shoadd mostvin spacil ek o nasiom thier seli
[T

Article 40

Chilchen whe o ocosed of brecking the low

bk b Tl e binuie

flor ik o i ot ol
winhoass ofbencn,

Article 4]
i the bews of cousiry proled
childn Esttr e ths crbichin, of B

Cswisnfisn, Hhaih st kv shoadd shery.

Article 42
T Crowirrrvint stk rraskis e Cornifion:
v b ol s cnel chilen.

For further inormation on the Lniked
Metions Comention an fhe Rights
of the Chiled plesases visit; The Wildh
Crwerriment's LMCRC Webste

woannuncrehetastitight ook

Che - The Metional Hormation and

warnechcoring ek nesws!



ANNEX B5
Children’s Rights Impact Assessment:Positive Parenting Campaign

Children’s Rights Impact Assessment (CRIA) Template

Title / Piece

‘Parenting. Give it Time’ — positive parenting campaign
of work: & P P & palg

Related SF /
LF number SF/LG/1589/15

(if applicable)

Name of

Official: Lucy Akhtar

Department: | Education and Public Services Group

Date: 18 July 2015

Signature:

Please complete the CRIA and retain it for your records on iShare. You may be asked to provide this
document at a later stage to evidence that you have complied with the duty to have due regard to
children’s rights e.g. Freedom of Information access requests, monitoring purposes or to inform
reporting to the NAfW.

Upon completion you should also forward a copy of the CRIA to the Measure Implementation Team
for monitoring purposes using the dedicated mailbox CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

If officials are not sure about whether to complete a CRIA, they should err on the side of caution and
seek advice from the Measure Implementation Team by forwarding any questions to our mailbox
CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

You may wish to cross-reference with other Impact Assessments undertaken.
NB. All CRIAs undertaken on legislation must be published. All non-legislative CRIAs will be listed on

the WG website and must be made available upon request. Ministers are however, encouraged to
publish all completed CRIAs.

Paék Page 63



mailto:CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:CRIA@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Six Steps to Due Regard

4. Advising the 5. Recording
Minister & and

6. Revisiting
the piece of

1. What's the
piece of work 2. Analysing the

and its impact
objective(s)?

work as and
when needed

Ministerial communicating
decision the outcome

Step 1. What'’s the piece of work and its objective(s)?

You may wish to include:

o A brief description of the piece of work e Isitlikely that the piece of work will affect
e What the time frame for achieving it is? children?
e Who are the intended beneficiaries? e Will the piece of work have an affect on a

particular group of children, if so, describe the
group affected?

Description of the piece of work

Evidence suggests that certain approaches to parenting promote successful outcomes for
children and research has shown that a positive parenting style is more likely to lead to
better social, emotional and academic outcomes for children.

(Sroufe, et al 1990; Emler, 2001; Desforges and Bouchaard, 2003; Seaman et al, 2005;
Feinstein and Sabates, 20060’Connor and Scott 2007; Moullin et al, 2008; Katz and
Redmond, 2009; Asmussen and Weizel, 2010 and Nixon, 2012). Please see a full list of
references in ‘Parenting in Wales: Guidance on engagement and support’
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/cyp/140910-parenting-in-wales-guidance-en.pdf

Positive parenting is where parents:

e are loving, nurturing and respectful;

e are supportive and involved,;

provide clear consistent boundaries based on realistic expectations according to a
child’s age and stage of development;

model good behaviour;

provide appropriate supervision;

praise good behaviour; and

handle problem behaviours consistently without resorting to physical punishment
and excessive shouting.

In the Autumn the Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty will launch a positive
parenting campaign. The overall aim of the campaign is to help bring about an attitudinal
change in the general public on the way children and young people are brought up and

Pack Pag® 64




disciplined, by making physical punishment unacceptable and promoting positive
alternatives.

‘Parenting. Give it time’, will promote positive approaches to raising children through a
number of different media channels. Using the theme of ‘time,” the messages given to
parents will be positive and supportive. Initially the main target audience will be parents
and carers of young children (0-5), as evidence suggests children in this age group may be
more likely to be smacked.

(See: Jackson (1999) cited in Henricson, H. & Grey, A. (2001) “Understanding Discipline”
National Family and Parenting Institute; and Bunting, L., Webb, M. & Healy, J. (2008) “The
‘Smacking Debate’ in Northern Ireland — Messages from Research”, Barnardo’s Cymru,
Northern Ireland Commissioner for Children and Young People and NSPCC Northern
Ireland).

The campaign would support the overall aim by:

e using a range of ‘marketing’ techniques and approaches to raise awareness of the
positive parenting message;

e providing ‘products’ (such as leaflets, web content, video clips, posters and
Facebook posts) which will offer information, practical tips and strategies to support
attitudinal and behaviour change;

e signposting parents to services (such as health visitors, Family Information Service,
Families First, Flying Start etc); and

e bringing together a range of internal and external stakeholders who can use their
influence to support attitudinal and behaviour change.

Research
Running parallel to this piece of work will be three strands of research activity:
Campaign development: focus groups will be undertaken to explore the key campaign

messages and the most effective approaches to promotion. It is likely this will include focus
groups with parents of children aged under seven years old.

Children and young people’s attitudes towards physical punishment: qualitative work will
be undertaken with children to explore their attitudes towards methods of parenting
including physical punishment. Previous work has explored adults’ attitudes on this topic,
but there has been no work yet with children and young people who are more likely to be
affected by physical punishment. Specialists will be commissioned to carry out this
research due to ethical sensitivities.

Quantitative baseline of attitudes: We will commission some work to gauge the attitudes of
parents who have children in the target age group, prior to the campaign. We then intend
to conduct the research again a few years into the campaign with parents in the target
group to explore if there are any differences in attitudes.

Time frames

As attitudes are formed by a complex range of factors, our approach will require a
concerted effort over a number of years. It is envisaged that the campaign could run over a
period of three years. The first phase will run from autumn 2015 until the end of March
2016.

Beneficiaries and affect on children

Paék Page 65




e Children should benefit from positive parenting by having a happier home life,
displaying improved behaviour and having better social and emotional development;

e Parents should benefit from adopting positive parenting methods by experiencing
less stress and improved well-being;

e Parents and children should benefit from a better parent-child relationship.

Step 2. Analysing the impact

e What are the positive and/or negative impacts for children, young people or their families?

e  Where there are negative impacts; what compensatory measures may be needed to mitigate any
negative impact?

e How will you know if your piece of work is a success?

e Have you developed an outcomes framework to measure impact?

e Have you considered the short, medium and long term outcomes?

e Do you need to engage with children & young people and/or stakeholders to seek their views using
consultation or participatory methods?

e Do you need to produce child friendly versions of proposals/consultations?

e What are the positive and/or negative impacts for children, young people or their
families?
What compensatory measures may be needed to mitigate any negative impact?

It is not expected that there will be negative impacts on children and their families. The
campaign will be a vehicle for promoting positive parenting strategies and helping parents
to find positive solutions to managing their children’s challenging behaviour.

Positive Impacts:

The campaign intends to affect a culture change in attitudes towards physical punishment
of children in Wales, making it unacceptable. The campaign will promote the rewarding of
good behaviour rather than punishing bad behaviour.

The campaign will provide parents with options and alternatives to physical punishment
and encourage parents to look after their own health and well-being better to manage
stressful situations.

This campaign will promote positive parenting to a wide audience. It will raise awareness
among the wider public of the value of positive parenting and help normalise the process of
seeking parenting help.

Potential Negative impact:

There may be a perception by some parents that the Welsh Government is telling them
how to parent. However we will be promoting the following supportive messages:

e The campaign isn’t about telling parents how to raise their children.
e There is no ‘one size fits all’ way to parent. Every child and every parent is unique
and the campaign does not provide a set of parenting rules that must be followed. It

Pack Pag® 66




gives tips and strategies so parents can make decisions about what can work for
their child and family.

e Nobody has all the answers and there is no such thing as a perfect parent.
However, psychologists have found the positive parenting style is most likely to help
children grow up happy and learn well.

The campaign aims to empower parents to maximise their skills and knowledge in order to
build a positive, healthy relationship with their children.

e How will you know if your piece of work is a success?
We will do this on a number of levels:

e The research activity described earlier will explore attitudes to physical punishment and

parenting practices amongst parents in the target group prior to and later in the

campaign.

We will be measuring traffic and engagement on social media and our dedicated

website.

The media agency, engaged to support delivery of the campaign, will monitor the
effectiveness of the various media channels used to promote the campaign messages.

Have you considered the short, medium and long term outcomes?

Parents have greater access
to positive parenting
information and advice.

Parents and public
awareness raised:

+ Parenting skills can
be learnt and
improved;

*  Smacking ineffectual
— better methods;

» All parents need
help;

» Positive parenting
leads to better
outcomes for
children.

Parents engage with
services, request information
and ask for advice about
positive parenting.

The Logic Model below summarises the intended short, medium and long term outcomes.

Parents believe physical
punishment is less
acceptable

Societal culture change
Messages and advice about
positive parenting
embedded in mainstream
services and positive culture
about parenting support and
positive parenting
established

Parents more confident,
knowledgeable and
competent about using
positive parenting strategies
and use less coercive
parenting strategies like
smacking and shouting.

Child outcomes improved -
reduced behavioural and

emotional problems.

Parents have better
outcomes— reduced family
conflict, improved mental
well-being.

Parents are more open to
engage with services.

Professionals more aware
and supportive of delivering
positive parenting messages.

Professionals more
confident, knowledgeable
about delivering information,
advice and support about

positive parenting strategies.

\ 4

Paék Page 67

“make the physical
punishment of children and
young people
unacceptable through the
promotion of positive
alternatives”.




e Do you need to engage with children & young people and/or stakeholders to seek
their views using consultation or participatory methods?

We will be seeking the views of children and young people on physical punishment and
parenting practices through commissioned research, as described above.

Step 3. How does your piece of work support and promote children’s rights?

Dependant upon the impact of your piece of work, use balanced judgement to assess:

e Which UNCRC articles are most relevant to the piece of work? Consider the articles which your piece of
work impacts upon. http://uncrcletsgetitright.co.uk/images/PDF/UNCRCRights.pdf

e How are you improving the way children and young people access their rights?

e What aspects of children’s lives will be affected by the proposal?

o What are the main issues that the CRIA should focus on?

e Does the piece of work help to maximise the outcomes within the articles of the UNCRC?

e If no, have any alternatives to the current piece of work been considered?

Which UNCRC articles are most relevant to the piece of work? Consider the articles
which your piece of work impacts upon

The Positive Parenting Campaign is based on the core principles of the UNCRC which
centres on respect for children’s best interests and rights and support for parents in carrying
out their role:

ensuring best interests of the child (article 3);

parental guidance and evolving capacity (article 5);

parental responsibilities (article 18);

ensuring the child’s rights for basic care and survival, (Article 6), play and education
(Articles 28 & 31);

protection from abuse, neglect and degrading treatment (Article 19); and

e aright to have a say in matters affecting them as their abilities develop (Article 12).

The UNCRC contains a number of provisions relating specifically to parents and
highlighting the importance of their role. E.g. the UNCRC gives parents responsibility for
providing their child with appropriate guidance and direction on using their rights properly
(Article 5) and in matters relating to religion and conscience (Article 14). Article 18 identifies
both parents as having the primary responsibility for bringing up their children, making it
clear that governments must provide resources and support to help them fulfil their
responsibilities. It also gives parents responsibility to provide adequate living conditions to
meet their child’s development needs, with financial assistance from the Government if
needed (Article 27).

How are you improving the way children and young people access their rights?

Ultimately the campaign is intended to provide advice and information for parents rather
than support directly to children. However, for a majority of children, the family home is
where they will realise many of the rights laid out in the UNCRC. Parents clearly have a
pivotal role as guardians and advocates of children’s rights with a responsibility on the state
to act as final guarantor. It is hoped that the campaign will assist parents to parent in a
positive, supportive manner that considers and reflects children’s rights. This will ultimately

Pack Pag® 68



http://uncrcletsgetitright.co.uk/images/PDF/UNCRCRights.pdf

benefit children and enable them to realise their rights and maximise positive outcomes for
them.

We will be seeking the views of children and young people on physical punishment and
parenting practices through commissioned research, as described above.

e What aspects of children’s lives will be affected by the proposal?

The information provided to parents will encourage them to incorporate positive parenting
strategies (such as praise, talking, playing and listening) into every day activities with their
children like dressing, playing, shopping, bathing and mealtimes. It will provide specific tips
and information for parents on dealing with common behaviours and situations where
parents may be more likely to resort to shouting or physical punishment. It will also provide
information to parents on what their child can be expected to do, to encourage parents to
adopt realistic expectations.

e Does the piece of work help to maximise the outcomes within the articles of the
UNCRC?

For a majority of children, the family home is where they will realise many of the rights laid
out in the UNCRC. The campaign is intended to maximise the articles of the UNCRC
through:

e a culture change in attitudes towards physical punishment in Wales, making it
unacceptable and promoting positive parenting techniques. Helping mothers and fathers
understand the importance of their role and the positive difference they can make to
their child’s development, (Article 5,18)

e providing all parents with easy to access tips and information about ways to help take
some of the stress out of everyday family activities, such as bed time, bath time and the
weekly food shop. Providing details of organisations for parents who may need further
help and support. (Article 18)

e encouraging parents to play, talk and listen to their children and encourage positive
behaviour by adopting positive parenting strategies (Articles 28 & 31)

e encouraging parents to consider their young child’s emerging capacity for autonomy —
e.g. giving their young child some choices about what to play with, what to wear and
what to eat. (article 5)

e encouraging parents to adopt positive parenting strategies and providing them with
options and alternatives to physical punishment. E.g. praising positive behaviour rather
than punishing bad behaviour. Highlighting the negative impact of using physical
punishment and that it is not an effective method of discipline (article 19)

e The campaign will provide age appropriate tips and strategies to promote children’s
development (article 3)

The campaign will also work with professionals who support parents and provide

Paék Page 69




information to them on positive parenting.

Step 4. Advising the Minister and Ministerial decision

When giving advice and making recommendations to the Minister, consider:

e The ways in which the piece of work helps to maximise the outcomes within the articles of the UNCRC?

e Has any conflict with the UNCRC articles within the proposal been identified?

e Consider the wider impact; does the proposal affect any other policy areas?

e With regard to any negative impacts caused by the proposal; can Ministers evidence that they have
allocated as much resources as possible?

e What options and advice should be provided to Ministers on the proposal?

e Inrelation to your advice on whether or not to proceed with the piece of work, is there any additional
advice you should provide to the Minister?

e Isit appropriate to advise the Minister to reconsider the decision in the future, in particular bearing in
mind the availability of resources at this time and what resources may be available in the future?

e Have you provided advice to Ministers on a LF/SF and confirmed paragraph 26?

e |s the advice supported by an explanation of the key issues?

Advice to Minister

Although parents have some access to universal parenting support delivered by partners in
local government, health and education, services are primarily provided through our anti-
poverty programmes — Flying Start, Families First and Communities First. In his Annual
Report (2013-14) the Children’s Commissioner for Wales expressed concern all parents
and carers should have access to universal parenting support.

Targeting parenting support to families living in deprivation or to families assessed by
professionals to have problems may attract stigma, which could affect parents’ readiness
to engage. A targeted approach to parenting support also does not contribute to a culture
where parenting is seen as a learned skill everyone can acquire and benefit from.

It is important for parents to receive consistent messages on the key aspects of good,
positive parenting from a range of sources. Non-statutory guidance, "Parenting in Wales:
Guidance on engagement and support" sets out the Welsh Government's expectations on
how parenting support should be provided. The guidance is intended to inform the
decisions made by those delivering and commissioning parenting services. It contains a
firm expectation for positive parenting principles to be promoted actively and consistently.

Research we commissioned last year has provided us with insights into attitudes in Wales
to child discipline. It has contributed to our knowledge of different discipline strategies
parents use and their information needs. The research highlights the potential to build on
parents' existing skills in order to reinforce the effectiveness of the positive strategies they
already use.

Evidence suggests attitudes towards parenting and physical discipline could be influenced
by a national social marketing campaign. Lessons can be learned from the implementation

Pack Pag® 70




of various social marketing campaigns in the UK and internationally. The success of these
campaigns depended on having clear, consistent and positive messages promoted through
a number of media communication methods.

To take forward the Programme for Government and manifesto commitment on positive
parenting, the Minister was advised to consider funding a social marketing campaign and
funding research with children and parents on attitudes to physical punishment and
parenting practices.

No advice was given on legislation as the Welsh Government has no mandate to legislate
on this issue as it was not part of the Government’s manifesto and does not feature in the
legislative programme.

The Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty has given agreement for the campaign
in SF/LG/1589/15

Step 5. Recording and communicating the outcome
Final version to be retained on i-share

Evidence should be retained that supports:

e How the duty has been complied with (Steps 1-3 above)

e The analysis that was carried out (Steps 1-3 above)

e The options that were developed and explored (Steps 1- 3 above)

e How have the findings / outcomes been communicated? (Step 4 above)

e ‘Tells the story’ of how the assessment has been undertaken and the results (Step 4 above)

Paék Page 71




Step 6. Revisiting the piece of work as and when needed

In revisiting the piece of work, consider any monitoring, evaluation or data collection that has been

undertaken:

e Has your piece of work has had the intended impact as set out in Step 2.

e Have you engaged with stakeholders to discuss how the policy or practice is working.

e If not, are changes required.

e |dentify where improvements can be made to reduce any negative impact.

e Identify any opportunities to promote children’s rights, bearing in mind any additional availability of
resources at this time.

Reviewing intended impact:

We will do this on a number of levels:

e The research activity described earlier will explore attitudes to physical punishment and
parenting practices amongst parents in the target group prior to and later in the
campaign.

Review date: research conducted prior to campaign — follow up research — date tbc

e We will be measuring traffic and engagement on social media and our dedicated
website.

Review date: Initially monthly and thereafter bi-monthly

e The media agency, engaged to support delivery of the campaign, will monitor the
effectiveness of the various media channels used to promote the campaign messages

Review date: The media agency will provide regular updates, which will be reviewed
Engagement with stakeholders to discuss how the policy or practice is working
Engagement will take place through the following activities:

e presentations to national networks, forums, meetings, conferences and events;

e articles in external Newsletters or briefings;

e meetings with key individuals
The working links with key relevant organisations, already established, will be maintained. These
include regular attendance at

All Wales Health Visiting Forum;

FIS Network;

North Wales Families First Parenting Learning Set; and
National Parenting Coordinators Network.

Pack Pag& 72




Budgets

Please give any details:

Monitoring & Review

Yes /

Month / Year

March 2016

See next page for a
Summary List of the
UNCRC articles

Pack Page 73



Walas

st out how childeen shoudd be treated

THE UNITED NATIONS CONVENTION
ON THE RIGHTS OF THE CHILD

www.uncrcletsgetitright.co.uk

The Linitmd Mations Comeention on the Rights of the Chid is on infernational ogreement fhat prodects e human
rights of the chidren under #i2 oge of 18. On Vs December 199, the United Kingdom of Greot Britain and Marhem
Ielond ormaly agred o moke s that every chid in the: UK has ol the: rights os isted in the convention. The YWelsh
Ciowernmant has shown s mmmitment o the comention by adopting it os the basis for policy making for chidren in

Hlicgether them ore 54 orfides In the comvention. Artides 43-54 ore cbout how adulis and govermments should werk
together ko moke sure ol chideen o entifed io their rights. The nkrmasion coniained here s ohout ariickes 1-42 which

Article 1 dedor that afect them, ond ks hoe ter  Article 22
Everyora under 1B yeors of oom hes ol B opriofs ok il gt Tralcresn whes cor iz 2
rights in Bis Comemnfion. Article B ahecaded bt swred rights. o bxsar in
el cowniry.
Articls 2 v bt right b gt el b sherr
hcﬂmmqnphh wholir  Pommofion os long s the omaion ket Article 233
mﬂ ummm dharaaging bo B of b o ik whes hevvar crny kind e sty sheadd
n-u:,-ard Ty o fewily thasy cores Article 14 Fumom sl comm o sgprert s e thesy con
ik Perv th right 1 ik ond bl ool ondinc e
Article 3 " Mﬂqﬁt ﬂprmumrdgh- PrtlclaMEL
A ergarisabon, arcamiad wilth dhidnn Soukd @ long o5 iy om rol Seping ko Tt b iy il
et Iowerch what &bt fer each chid mm:gﬁ-uﬂghuhtwﬂﬂgﬁ mudbdﬂﬂu.rﬁnhﬁduda
i wiverrmit s et thisy will shosy Paclitey
Article 4 Bk coirtrins shoubd ek poone courdtic
Coevwierrvenivhs shooubd ks s rights Article 15 i tha
erenledrda bes bl Chilchen berv the right i meed logather and
ho o g ondd epbctions s lorg s Article 25
Article 5 His choss ot sl ol ol freem arin ik whes e sk it by el
Grevommoroarvhs shoukd respact the rights and i rights custheariby rtbur thesn tsr gosnts shed b
resporalblfie of fomibes o dnect ond i st rmvisd gy,
i childor 5o Bt o Thy grow, they leem Article 14
e st P ights. posarly ﬂﬁmmn@thpmﬂ-mm;ﬂuﬂdgfﬁ
Hham from affeds ﬂﬂﬂid Thair Cmasrrrmosst bt prcsich scdics frecaviny
Article & gmdmmrmn endther  or th chidhen of Fambat i e
Al children Ferva tha right of e Gowsmments
shoadd ansuns that amn*dhhp Article 27
Pk, Mdﬂﬁ.mu Edﬁmmn@thﬂﬂwﬁdd
v F slcbb infornotion H Ty
f.lrﬂdgl?;uﬂn ia'nhmrﬁdnihﬁm_mdﬂn;ii mﬂmw
chichen right Iy o lagaly rawipaypsars sheukd normedion ek wha cormal afiord b provda fis
h%:bn arnd  chibdhen ao ondesdand ard shoudd pot
m:?mhmudmhmpuﬁbu promalte moksnials Bk could herm s, Article 28
Tor by s prswnts J'LI'HBI-EIB G&mmn@rhwﬂﬂmﬂm
shoaded sieapaief childin's humaon
Article 8 ) ﬁﬁ“‘””' hrrgiﬂﬁ ﬁm-,f.d.mmum
Grevmmorearrhs shoukd respact chiden’s right o hld-i:brnﬁd mgﬂﬂwmwm
a Fuisial, & bty ond Tamdy Hes uhdhmdlduﬁmimﬂn#ﬁﬂhlzh
% srvices o suppart
Article 9 ot g by Article 29
MMHHWMM Eibuczstion shosdd dheveateg wach crkds
pmrm...;huuhﬁumgmdh Article 17 - pesrssrelty end intersts s s Rl B sheoukd
ﬁFﬂ'ﬂIl.n'ﬂ'l'.‘ll‘? neghacting  Gennminants shoukd s ot chiden o snczrgn childen I respiec! Ther posnt
-:ﬁ:dluuﬂ. i shery i eoevicct weth m“gawwmﬁwmm et e cad e e k
Frey n 1 ¥ o
o st bt This it burt ths bl oy s whes b xbar B Mdﬁiu R
a ] L
Articls 10 Articls 20 e Lo Wt
Fiarilis whe botr in st contrios shod b (ildren wha connol be koked ohier by it fhae one shomd by the mojorly o pecpls in
abervetnd fis v Babwemin oo covnfiies s Mhrhmﬂhbdudn‘l‘upmhf Hhw cxasriry or red
Heest pewarets e chidnn con sy In cordadt of wrhey rmapinct thasr reslgion,
gl Bod lecalher o o oy, ﬁrﬂdﬂ;ﬂ. I
a =] L
Article T Article 21 o e
Coevemmaeaivs should hoke sheps o chikdear Wl chldien o ko bied fhe Fes? conasen
sty e sl o i v cowmniry st ot whicd b bt for them, The some s Article 32
sheadd apply whather the chiker one adopted  The Govmmant shoud protect dhide fram
Article 12 s Thedn vy whisrs iy vl beorn o token miﬂdn?ununﬁil‘nmﬂﬂ
ko Perwoss thesr right b scsy wht thary s b I cornctbnr cowndy.
thirk o hesppoan, whan adils s making

\:_

Pack Pag& 74

Liywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Govermment

Article 33

moefugen  The Goverment shoud of
prohicing chidnen mm g,

PTIEE-E:E:M e Fresm
undnh.ur pretet

Article 35
T Crowirrrvit bl rroskis sor Thot chikdean
e o abdechind of sokd

Article 36
(hibcran sheukd ba
it

Article 37

Ol ey bl this b shocidel st b
tractid cruady. shvadel|irod beie piif I gortaan
mdﬁﬂnﬁﬂhﬂbﬂn
coniact with ther iomles

Article 38
%ﬂ:‘rrm‘h.dﬁklmlah- chidms unde

from oy
tresirn Hssi it g

T e Chilcbren i wer 2onas
recvi peecicl prolection.
Article 39
ik wehies heswa b ragghactind o csbo ]
shoadd mostvin spacil ek o nasiom thier seli
[T

Article 40

Chilchen whe o ocosed of brecking the low

bk b Tl e binuie

flor ik o i ot ol
winhoass ofbencn,

Article 4]
i the bews of cousiry proled
childn Esttr e ths crbichin, of B

Cswisnfisn, Hhaih st kv shoadd shery.

Article 42
T Crowirrrvint stk rraskis e Cornifion:
v b ol s cnel chilen.

For further inormation on the Lniked
Metions Comention an fhe Rights
of the Chiled plesases visit; The Wildh
Crwerriment's LMCRC Webste

woannuncrehetastitight ook

Che - The Metional Hormation and

warnechcoring ek nesws!



CYPE(5)-09-16 - Papur | Paper 2 - i'w nodi | to note

Agenda ltem 3.1

Welsh Government response to the Committee of Advertising Practice
consultation on introducing restrictions on the non-broadcast advertising of
food and soft drinks to children, 21 July 2016.

The Welsh Government considers that promotion can impact on High Fat, Salt and
Sugar (HFSS) food preference, purchase and consumption by children.

The Welsh Government considers current UK broadcast regulations are not strong
enough to reduce children’s exposure to unhealthy food advertising. We support the
banning of advertising of such foods before the 9pm watershed. We will continue to
pursue this.

The Welsh Government welcomes the Committee of Advertising Practice’s intention
to introduce restrictions on the non-broadcast advertising of food and soft drinks to
children. It is recognised that there is a shift in children’s screen time away from
television. Digital marketing strategies are rapidly growing and are a potentially
influential area, given the highly immersive and interactive nature of these
approaches.

We recognise there is a paucity of evidence regarding the behavioural and health
impacts of new digital marketing strategies, which differ in approach to most
traditional marketing strategies. However, we are aware that research on averaging
found it significantly influenced the intake of, or preference for, high sugar foods in
school age children.

A review, published by Public Health England in October 2015, examined the most
recent research evidence on the health and behavioural impacts of marketing
strategies that target high sugar food and non-alcoholic drink. It considered that the
evidence suggests:
e marketing strategies (including promotion) are likely to impact on purchases
and consumption, with the evidence predominantly focused on children
e promotion activities such as averaging and sponsorship can influence
purchase and intake of unhealthy or high sugar products

Findings from this review support evidence from previous systematic reviews to
suggest that marketing is effective in influencing the purchase and consumption of
unhealthy or high sugar foods. And most of the evidence focuses on children who
are considered more vulnerable to the impact of marketing.

Although we accept that evidence could be stronger, we consider that the stakes are

high enough to justify strong regulation across all forms of promotion of High Fat,
Salt and Sugar foods to children.

Pack Page 75



Over a quarter of reception age children in Wales are overweight or obese.

Children and young people in Wales have sugar intakes around three times over the
recommended maximum. From the National Diet and Nutrition Survey (December
2015), the main sources of added sugar (non-milk extrinsic sugars, NMES) was soft
drinks contributing 29% to NMES intake for children aged 11 to 18 years and 13-
14% for children aged 10 years and under ‘Cereals and cereal products’ contributing
24-29% and ‘sugar, preserves and confectionery’ contributing 20-23% to NMES
intake in children.

In addition to the immediate health consequences of obesity and an unhealthy diet,
early-life behaviours may track into adulthood and influence weight later in life, with
estimates that around 70% of obese children or adolescents become obese adults.

It is therefore crucial that everyone with influence over these alarming statistics acts
now. We therefore call on CAP to introduce the legislation to eliminate advertising of
HFSS foods and drinks in all forms of non-broadcast advertising that may be viewed
by our children and young people.

Pack Page 76



Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru | National Assembly for Wales A d |tem 3 2
Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg | Children, Young People arg ?cncat%n

Committee
CYPE(5)-09-16 — Papur | Paper 3 — i’'w nodi | to note

Ymateb gan : NSPCC Cymru
Response from : NSPCC Wales

10th October 2016
Dear Lynne Neagle AM

As you debate the policy areas on which you focus on the coming years can I urge you to
listen to children’s voices?

To assist you, Childline’s 2015/6 annual report was recently launched. It can be found here:
https://www.nspcc.org.uk/globalassets/documents/annual-reports/childline-annual-review-

2015-16.pdf

Mental health and wellbeing issues were the main reason why children contact Childline.

These are the key points from our Childline 2015/6 annual review:
e Demand for our Childline service has remained high and we’ve provided more than
300,000 counselling sessions this year (up 5 per cent on last year).

e Mental health and wellbeing issues continue to be the main reason why
children and young people contact us, with one in three counselling sessions
about this topic.

e Most worryingly, we're seeing increases in the most serious mental health
problems. This year we provided over 19,000 counselling sessions with young people
who were thinking about or planning suicide - the highest levels we've ever seen.

e At the same time, we've seen an 87 per cent increase in the number of
counselling sessions where children and young people talked to us about
struggling to access appropriate professional support locally especially for
mental health problems, some of which were linked to their experiences of abuse.
This follows an increase of 124 per cent in the previous year.

e Young people are also increasingly turning to Childline for support about the issues
they are encountering online. We provided over 11,000 counselling sessions relating
to online issues including sexual abuse, bullying and safety (up by 9 per cent on last
year). We've seen increases this year in counselling sessions around online grooming,
sharing sexual images online (sexting) and viewing online sexually explicit images
(pornography and child abuse images).

We at the NSPCC are concerned that abused children do not always receive the professional
support they need. We know that the impact of abuse can include mental health problems
such as anxiety, depression, substance misuse, eating disorders, self-harm, anger and
aggression, sexual symptoms and age inappropriate sexual behaviour. Research by Public
Health Wales shows that 10% of adults in Wales suffered sexual abuse and 17% physical
abuse and that adverse childhood experiences lead to health-harming behaviours and low
mental well-being in adult life. Receiving the right support at the right time can mean the

Pack Page 77


https://www.nspcc.org.uk/globalassets/documents/annual-reports/childline-annual-review-2015-16.pdf
https://www.nspcc.org.uk/globalassets/documents/annual-reports/childline-annual-review-2015-16.pdf

difference between overcoming their trauma, or a life shaped by the horror of their
experiences.

Article 19 of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child states that children
should be protected from all forms of violence and Article 39 states that the Government
‘shall take all appropriate measures to promote physical and psychological recovery....of a
child victim of any form .... abuse’. Children need access to support and therapeutic services
to enable them to overcome the trauma of their experiences and we are concerned that the
provision of such services for children is at best patchy.

In 2015, there was a 124% increase in Childline counselling sessions relating to mental
health and wellbeing that mentioned problems accessing services across the UK. In 2016
there was a further increase of 87%. We know that there is a high threshold for children and
young people’s access to CAMHS, so it is important to ensure that other therapeutic services
such as counselling, CBT and attachment based therapies are available.

Because of our concerns about access to therapy for abused children we suggested to the
Health and Social Care Committee and the Equalities, Local Government and Communities
Committee that they undertake a short inquiry into therapeutic services for children who
have experienced abuse.

We urge your Committee to respond to the very recent Childline figures and
monitor the delivery of services for children’s mental health, both access to CAMHS
and availability/ access to other therapeutic services for children and young
people in Wales. We also think it's essential to monitor the impact that the
additional CAMHS funding has had, in particular for children who've been
traumatised.

Des Mannion
National Head of Service for NSPCC Wales/Cymru

Pack Page 78



Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru CYPE(5)-09-16 — Papur | Paper 4 — i'w nodi | to note

Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg Ag e n d a Ite m 3 . 3

National Assembly for Wales
Children, Young People and Education Committee

Kirsty Williams AM
Cabinet Secretary for Education

13 October 2016
Dear Cabinet Secretary

Inquiry into the Education Improvement Grant: Gypsy, Roma and Traveller, and
Minority Ethnic children

The Children, Young People and Education Committee is undertaking some work
in relation to the Education Improvement Grant (EIG). The Committee has a
particular interest in the use of the EIG to support the educational attainment of
Gypsy, Roma and Traveller, and Minority Ethnic children.

To assist the Committee with its work, | would be grateful if you could provide the
Committee with the following information:

Policy decision to amalgamate grants into the EIG

1. Details of any impact assessment, particularly in relation to Gypsy, Roma and
Traveller, and Minority Ethnic children made by Welsh Government in advance of
the decision to amalgamate the grants into the EIG.

2. Details of any other options considered before the decision to amalgamate the
grants, including whether or not any of the grants could have continued as
distinct grants.

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales

Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 TNA Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 TNA
SeneddPPIA@cynulliad.cymru i/e&%%gig%@assembl wales
www.cynulliad.cymru/SeneddPPIA / ﬂ%@&%g neddCYPE

0300 200 6565 0300 200 6565



3. During the draft budget round of 2015-16, the then Minister said that the new
system should result in better outcomes for learners. Please provide any early
evidence of this, in particular in relation to Gypsy, Roma and Traveller and
Minority Ethnic children.

Process of allocating funds and measuring value for money

4. An explanation of the way in which the EIG is allocated, including the role of
regional consortia, local authorities and individual schools in delegating and
targeting funding to improve education outcomes for Gypsy, Roma and Traveller,
and Minority Ethnic children.

5. The amount of EIG that was allocated to, and subsequently spent by, each
regional consortium and Local Authority in 2015-16, as well as allocations for
2016-17. Please could this information be broken down to show amounts
allocated to specific interventions to improve education outcomes for Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller and Minority Ethnic children.

6. Information about the Welsh Government’s arrangements for monitoring the
expenditure of the EIG in relation to Gypsy, Roma and Traveller, and Minority
Ethnic children.

7. Please provide details of any actual and projected cost savings that have arisen
from this policy change.

8. Information about any other financial benefits that have arisen as a result of
this policy change.

Evaluation

9. Any evidence that the amalgamation of the grant has resulted in better
education outcomes for Gypsy, Roma and Traveller and Minority Ethnic children.

10. Details of the terms and conditions attached to regional consortia and local
authorities’ use of the EIG, particularly in relation to Gypsy, Roma and Traveller,
and Minority Ethnic children.

Z

Pack Page 80




11. Details of the outcome and outcome measures for 2015-16 and 2016-17 for
Gypsy, Roma and Traveller and Minority Ethnic children.

12. Details of the monitoring arrangements for adherence to the terms and
conditions of the EIG, particularly the outcome and outcome measures, and the
sanctions available to Welsh Government if they are not met.

13. Welsh Government’s “Minority ethnic achievement in education in Wales”
information document says that it “will hold services to account for delivering
improved learner outcomes”. Please provide information on which services are
held to account and how.

14. Information about specific interventions for which the EIG was used to
improve education outcomes for Gypsy, Roma and Traveller and Minority Ethnic
children in 2015-16? Please also provide information on how the impact of such

interventions is monitored.

The Committee is grateful for your assistance with this matter and looks forward
to receiving your response. In order to fully inform the Committee’s work, | would
be grateful if you could provide this information by 11 November.

Yours Sincerely

L*-‘—"‘ N Al

Lynne Neagle AC / AM
Cadeirydd / Chair

Pack Page 81




: CYPE(5)-09-16 — Papur | Paper 5 — i'w nodi | to note
lliad Cenedlagthol C
%ﬂ@u @la i[ée e@ﬁf@ |Ciai Y‘4

National Assembly for Wales
Children, Young People and Education Committee

Carl Sargeant AM
Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children

13 October 2016
Dear Cabinet Secretary

Children, Young People and Education Committee inquiry into statutory advocacy
provision

The Children, Young People and Education Committee is undertaking some work
in relation to statutory advocacy provision in Wales.

To assist the Committee with its work, | would be grateful if you could provide the
Committee with the following information:

The National Approach to Statutory Advocacy for Children and Young People

1. What is the latest position in relation to the implementation of the National
Approach to Advocacy Services? Is there a draft version of the National Approach?
If yes, how long has a draft version been under consideration? Can a copy be
provided to the Committee?

2. How will the National Approach be fully implemented? What are the timescales
for implementation?

3. What assessment has been made of the costs of implementing the National
Approach? How will these costs be met?

4. How will you assess the impact and outcomes for children and young people of
a National Approach?

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 TNA Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 TNA
SeneddPPIA@cynulliad.cymru SeneddCYPE@assemblywales
www.cynulliad.cymru/SeneddPPIA Pack \R/@ggeggywales/SeneddCYPE
0300 200 6565 0300 200 6565

o




The impact of Part 10 of the Social Services and Well-being Act 2014

5. What are the implications of provisions in the Act on advocacy services for
children and young people?

6. How will you assess the impact of provisions in the Act that relate to advocacy
and the associated Code of Practice on Advocacy?

7. Do you have evidence that the provisions relating to advocacy in the Social
Services and Well-Being Act 2014 have resulted in better outcomes for children
and young people?

The Committee is grateful for your assistance with this matter and looks forward
to receiving your response. In order to fully inform the Committee’s work, | would
be grateful if you could provide this information by 11 November.

Yours Sincerely

L_v-‘-"‘ L

Lynne Neagle AC / AM
Cadeirydd / Chair

Pack Page 83




CYPE(5)-09-16 — Papur | Paper 6 — i’'w nodi | to note
Agenda Item 3.5

Cyngor Cymreig y Gwasanaethau leuenctid Gwirfoddol
Council for Wales of Voluntary Youth Services

T¢ Baltic_Baltic House t: 029 2047 3498
CWVYS Sgwar Mount Stuart Mount Stuart Square f: 029 2045 1245
Caerdydd_Cardiff CF1o 5FH admin@cwvys.org.uk

www.cwvys.org.uk

Lynne Neagle AM

Chair of Children, Young People and Education Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

28 October 2016

Lax- L\—yNLQ/
CYPE COMMITTEE: INQUIRY INTO YOUTH WORK

Thank you for the courtesy extended to CWVYS in relation to your kind invitation to provide oral
evidence at the CYPE Committee meeting on 6 October. Keith Towler, Catrin James and |
enjoyed the opportunity to meet Committee members and to elaborate upon our written
evidence.

As you are aware, during his address to Committee, the Minister outlined his department’s plans
to release the report findings of Welsh Government-commissioned research by Cordis Bright
(‘Mapping voluntary sector provision to support young people (14-18) to engage with ETE: report
on phase 2’). We seem to recall that the Minister and his officials were setting a considerable
amount of store by this report, in that it would help to ‘map’ the services provided by the
voluntary youth work sector, in order to aid local authorities as part of their work on the Youth
Engagement and Progression Framework (YEPF) programme.

I'm writing to highlight our concerns about this work — from a strategic perspective and also an
operational viewpoint; the latter being supported by comments received from several of CWVYS
Member organisations at our recent Regional Group meetings.

| have attached all documents pertaining to the research project, for your reference plus the
slides released to the sector at the beginning of Cordis Bright's work (April 2016).

ISSUES/CONCERNS

e Welsh Government claim that 242 consultation responses were received but Cordis
Bright's report states that only 206 organisations replied. The Welsh Government is
therefore claiming an extra 34 replies, which are actually derived from a few
respondents sending in several responses.

e 206 organisations out of a total of 2,554 groups working with young people in Wales
(WCVA Statistical Resource 2016) is a mere 8% response rate

e 39 respondents are current members of CWVYS plus 2 former members (20% of
respondents) could reasonably be assumed that they are already known to LAs

e There are many listed that are clearly not youth work providers — there are at least 84
in this category i.e. 41% of respondents. This includes County Voluntary Councils and

countless other ‘non-providers’ and/or non-core youth work provision.

PaCk Page 84 Rhif Elusen Gofrestredig Registered Charity Number 1110702

Rhif y Cwmni_Company Number 5444248



Cyngor Cymreig y Gwasanaethau Ieuenctid Gwirfoddol
Council for Wales of Voluntary Youth Services

Ty Baltic_Baltic House t: 029 2047 3498
Sgwar Mount Stuart Mount Stuart Square f: 029 2045 1245
Caerdydd_Cardiff CF10 5FH admin@cwvys.org.uk

WWW.cwvys.org.uk

e Others listed may include some work with children and young people but | might
suggest that it is fairly tangential and not necessarily a core aspect of their delivery —
The Baptist Chapel in Hengoed, for example, has a youth club that runs for one hour
per week.

o More positively, there are some organisations listed (both known and unknown to
us) - and with whom we will continue to discuss the potential benefits of CWVYS
Membership.

o However, it's clear that those who did respond but who are not youth work providers
see youth work, or rather ‘working with young people’ as an ‘add-on’ to their normal
business.

e Finally, it is interesting to note that Cordis Bright were instructed to ‘map voluntary
sector provision’ when the original CWVYS recommendation which prompted the
commissioning of the research stated that ‘voluntary youth work organisations have
great potential to contribute to the implementation of the YEPF’. The serious omission
of the words ‘youth work’ appear to have been lost in the commissioning process and
has led to many non-youth work specific organisations responding to the research.

MEMBERS’ VIEWS

It was clear from recent CWVYS Regional Group meetings that several CWVYS members are
questioning the validity of the YEPF programme in relation to their work and also their working
relationships with local authorities.

Whilst accepting that this is anecdotal evidence, we believe that Members at the ‘sharp end’ of
delivering youth work in their respective locations have are very important and very ‘real’ issues
for them and the young people with whom they work on daily basis.

On one level, several Members found the exercise difficult to complete because of the short-term
nature of projects covering several local authority areas.

Serious concern is attached to comments made directly about the YEPF programme:

- That Members inform local authorities of their work, location and services but no referrals are
forthcoming

- ‘What is the point? We find the young people ourselves’

- ‘Local authorities keep young people for their own general low-level provision’

- ‘We end up with more complex referrals’

- That funding does not follow the complex referrals because some local authorities do not
engage as outlined above

Pack Page 85

Rhif Elusen Gofrestredig_Registered Charity Number 1110702
Rhif y Cwmni_Company Number 5444248



Cyngor Cymreig y Gwasanaethau Ieuenctid Gwirfoddol
Council for Wales of Voluntary Youth Services

TV Baltic_Baltic House t: 029 2047 3498
Sgwar Mount Stuart_Mount Stuart Square f: 029 2045 1245
Caerdydd_Cardiff CF10 5FH admin@cwvys.org.uk

www.cwvys.org.uk

SUMMARY

In conclusion, the purpose of the ‘mapping’ is clearly towards supporting the targeted YEPF
programme and on that basis, the list might offer some useful information to the Engagement &
Progression Co-ordinators (EPCs) in each local authority, it does depends on what EPCs they
are seeking to commission/support/work with i.e. do they want youth work organisations or just
community-based enterprises that deliver some ‘work with young people'?

It is important to acknowledge that the work of all the respondents is no doubt of huge
importance — whether on a local, regional or national basis.

However, it is CWVYS’s opinion that this exercise in no way demonstrates anywhere near the
breadth and diversity and range of youth work providers and open access youth work provision
in the voluntary sector in Wales.

| do hope that this information is of use and/or interest to you. Should you need anything further
from CWVYS, please let me know.

| look forward to hearing from you in due course.

Yours sincerely

CP

Paul Glaze
Chief Executive
CWVYS

e-mail: paul@cwvys.org.uk

copied to: Marc Wyn Jones, Committee Clerk

Pack Page 86

Rhif Elusen Gofrestredig_Registered Charity Number 1110702
Rhif y Cwmni_Company Number 5444248



Welsh Government

Mapping voluntary sector provision
to support young people (14-18) to

engage with ETE: report on phase 2 Bright

September 2016

1 Introduction

This brief report accompanies the maps produced as the result of an exercise to map
voluntary sector provision to support young people aged 14-18 to engage or remain
engaged with education, training and employment. The report relates to phase 2 of the
mapping exercise and its purpose is to outline the activities and outputs of this final phase.
The report summarises:

¢ The methodology used in phase 2.

¢ Responses received from voluntary sector organisations during the mapping exercise.
¢ The format of the draft maps produced.

o Feedback received from Engagement and Progression Coordinators (EPCs) who
reviewed an early draft of the map for their local authority area.

e Suggestions for future analysis of the maps produced for this mapping exercise.
2 Methodology for phase 2

2.1 Summary of approach

Figure 1 provides a summary of our methodology for phase 2 of this project.

Figure 1: Methodology for phase 2

Request for
Web-based information from Production of
research voluntary sector draft maps
organisations

Sense test maps Production of
with EPCs final maps

© CordisBright | September 2016 Pack Page 87 1



Welsh Government
Mapping voluntary sector provision to support young people (14-18) to engage with ETE: report on phase 2

2.2

2.3

Stage 1. Web-based research

The following web-based research was conducted.

Identifying additional national and local voluntary sector organisations who were not
identified within phase 1 of the research, i.e. in addition to those included in existing
provision maps or whose details were provided to Cordis Bright by Engagement and
Progression Coordinators (EPCs) and voluntary sector colleagues.

Establishing whether voluntary sector organisations identified in phase 1 of the
research operate in local authority areas outside of those identified in phase 1 of the
research.

Establishing whether voluntary sector organisations identified in phase 1 of the
research run additional programmes not identified in phase 1 of the research.

Identifying email addresses for voluntary sector organisations to enable Cordis Bright
to send them the request for information and template directly. This also included
telephone research to establish or verify email addresses for organisations.

Stage 2: Request for information from voluntary sector organisations

Information was requested from voluntary sector organisations using the online
guestionnaire agreed with the Welsh Government following phase 1 of the mapping
exercise. The online questionnaire was administered via SurveyMonkey and was
available in Welsh and English. It was available for completion from 15 June 2016 to 17
July 2016.

Requests to participate in the mapping exercise were disseminated via a number of
methods. These were:

Direct emails to 305 providers identified during phase 1 and stage 1 of phase 2. This
included an initial request and three reminders.

Emails cascaded via networks and umbrella organisations who had agreed to promote
the mapping exercise. Again, this included an initial request and three reminders.
Organisations who cascaded the information included:

CWVYS.

WCVA.

Inter-Faith Council for Wales.
Race Council Cymru.

O O O O

Emails to all CVCs asking them to cascade the request and questionnaire via their
networks. This included an initial request and two reminders.

Emails to all EPCs asking them to cascade the request and questionnaire via their
networks.

Use of Twitter, including tweets from Cordis Bright and from the Welsh Government.

©

Bright | August 2016 Pack Page 88 2



Welsh Government
Mapping voluntary sector provision to support young people (14-18) to engage with ETE: report on phase 2

2.4

2.5

2.6

¢ Follow-up phone calls to 43 providers to request that they complete the questionnaire.
These phone calls targeted providers thought to be operating in at least two local
authority areas.

Stage 3: Production of draft maps

The information received via the questionnaires was added to information already
gathered from existing provision maps. This was used to produce a draft individual map
for each local authority area. The maps were created in Excel and produced in English at
draft stage.

Stage 4: Sense-testing maps with EPCs

Each draft map was shared by email with the EPC for the local authority area. They were
asked to review the maps and to comment in particular on whether any amendments
could be made to the format to make the map more accessible or useful.

Stage 5: Production of final maps

Feedback from the EPCs has been incorporated into re-drafted versions of the maps to
create the draft versions shared with the Welsh Government for feedback. Amendments
will be made based on feedback in order to finalise the maps. These will then be
translated into Welsh and the final versions will be delivered to the Welsh Government.

Responses received to the online questionnaire

242 online responses were received to the questionnaire. 232 of these were submitted in
English and 10 were submitted in Welsh. The data was checked and duplicates were
removed/merged. This resulted in map entries relating to 206 individual providers and/or
programmes.

These were used to create a map for each local authority area. These maps were then
compared to the existing local authority provision maps provided by EPCs during phase 1
of the mapping exercise to establish how many entries for each local authority area were:

e New entries —i.e. providers or programmes which responded to the online
guestionnaire and had not featured on the existing local author provision map.

o Updated entries —i.e. providers or programmes which responded to the online
guestionnaire and had already featured on the existing local authority provision map.

The comparison was also used to identify previous entries on existing local authority
provision maps — i.e. providers which did not respond to the online questionnaire but
which featured on the existing local authority provision maps?!. Whether the entry is new,
updated or previous is indicated in column F of the maps.

! Please note that these are listed at provider rather than programme level. There are three key reasons for this: a). a
number of existing local authority provision maps did not detail specific programmes; b). internet searches did not

© CordisBright | August 2016 Pack Page 89 3



Welsh Government

Mapping voluntary sector provision to support young people (14-18) to engage with ETE: report on phase 2

Figure 2: New, updated and previous entries per local authority

Figure 2 summarises the number and proportion of new, updated and previous entries per
local authority. This indicates that between 34% and 98% of entries on the individual
maps produced following phase 2 of the mapping exercise are new entries which did not
feature on the existing local authority provision map.

Local authority New_ Updgted Previous Totql
entries entries entries
Anglesey 45 (71%) 5 (8%) 13 (21%) 63
Blaenau Gwent 41 (68%) | 12 (20%) 7 (12%) 60
Bridgend 49 (69%) | 6(8%) | 16 (23%) 71
Caerphilly 48 (79%) | 11 (18%) 61
Cardiff 68 (84%) 7 (9%) 81
Carmarthenshire 48 (74%) 8 (12%) 9 (14%) 65
Ceredigion 42 (72%) | 6 (10%) | 10 (17%) 58
Conwy 51 (61%) | 6(7%) | 26 (31%) 83
Denbighshire 28 (34%) | 24 (29%) | 30 (37%) 82
Flintshire 27 (41%) | 22 (33%) | 17 (26%) 66
Gwynedd 45 (56%) | 13 (16%) | 23 (29%) 81
Merthyr Tydfil 46 (75%) | 10 (16%) 61
Monmouthshire 47 (84%) 5 (9%) 56
Neath Port Talbot 51 (58%) 4 (5%) 33 (38%) 88
Newport 63 (93%) 1 (1%) 68
Pembrokeshire 35 (52%) | 14 (21%) | 18 (27%) 67
Powys 43 (73%) | 2(3%) | 14 (24%) 59
Rhondda Cynon Taf 39 (46%) | 25 (30%) | 20 (24%) 84
Swansea 51 (76%) | 10 (15%) 67
Torfaen 38 (51%) | 13 (18%) | 23 (31%) 74
Vale of Glamorgan 55 (98%) 0 (0%) 56

consistently confirm the continued existence of specific programmes listed in the existing local authority maps; and c.) some
providers responded to the survey but did not provide details of specific programmes that were listed in the existing local
authority maps, and it was not possible to ascertain from their responses whether this was because programmes were no
longer running or because providers had simply not submitted a response for this programme.

© (

yrdisBright | August 2016

Pack Page 90



Welsh Government
Mapping voluntary sector provision to support young people (14-18) to engage with ETE: report on phase 2

Local authority New Updated  Previous Total

entries entries entries entries

Wrexham 43 (54%) 8 (10%) 28 (35%) 79

4 Format and content of draft maps

The format of the draft maps is closely based on the structure of the online questionnaire
itself. It enables map users to filter within columns to isolate providers/programmes with
particular characteristics (e.g. by age of young person worked with, type of support
offered, etc). However, more complex formatting has not been built into the maps and all
raw data is visible to users. This is because we anticipate that many local authority areas
will not retain the maps as a separate resource, but will incorporate the data into their
existing local provision maps. As discussed in the scoping report following phase 1 of the
mapping exercise, these existing maps take a variety of forms. Keeping the formatting of
the draft maps simple minimises any difficulties which local authority areas might
experience in transferring the data across to their preferred resource.

The draft maps contain:

¢ All data collected via the online questionnaire, including “new” and “updated” entries. If
providers did not respond to individual questions, these columns in the spreadsheet are
blank.

e The provider name and web address? (if known) of all “previous” entries®. This is so
that map users can see at a glance the names of all voluntary sector providers who
have either reported via the online questionnaire that they operating in the local
authority area or who were thought to be operating in the local authority area at the
date when the existing local authority maps were last updated?.

2 All web addresses included have been verified via internet searches. For national or regional providers, a local webpage
for the relevant local authority is included where was available.

3 For “previous” entries, additional data about provision is not included in the draft maps. This is because the level of detail
included in existing local authority provision maps varied widely, with some local authorities listing only a provider name. In
addition, all information included within local authority maps could not be verified by Cordis Bright without direct contact with
all providers and there was only limited resource available within the project budget to chase up with individual providers by
telephone. Lastly, individual local authorities already hold the non-verified data on their own “previous” entries in within the
existing provision map.

4 This date varies for individual local authorities, depending on their timetable for reviewing and updating provision maps.

© CordisBright | August 2016 Pack Page 91 5



Welsh Government

Mapping voluntary sector provision to support young people (14-18) to engage with ETE: report on phase 2

S

Feedback from EPCs on draft maps

The draft map for each local authority area was sent to the relevant EPC for feedback.
EPCs were particularly encouraged to offer feedback on changes that could be made to
the format of the maps to make them more accessible or useful.

Feedback was received from nine EPCs. Two of these had forwarded the draft maps to
colleagues in the voluntary sector, who also provided feedback, meaning that in total
feedback was received from 11 potential map users. All feedback indicated that the maps
were useful and provided additional information about voluntary sector provision to
support young people aged 14-18 to engage or remain engaged with ETE.

Figure 3 summarises specific feedback and Cordis Bright’s response to this.

Figure 3: Feedback from EPCs and voluntary sector colleagues — suggested amendments and responses

Feedback

Response from Cordis Bright

that they provide support to all tiers of
young people, but this appears
inaccurate given local knowledge of
the provision offered by these
organisations.

Some organisations have indicated

On reviewing responses, it does appear that
some providers have indicated that they cover
all Tiers/a particular Tier when their description
of their provision/information on the internet
suggests that they do not. We suggest adding
a note to this affect when we circulate the
finalised maps.

There are a number of providers who
currently work with young people who
have not completed the online
survey.

We have included the names of providers from
existing local authority provision maps within
the draft maps to try to ensure that all provision
identified via the online questionnaire or within
existing maps is captured within the mapping
exercise.

There is mention of some
organisations covering ‘part of the
local authority’- to support planning
and brokerage of support it would be
really useful to know what areas in
the local authority are covered.

Providers were asked within the online
guestionnaire to provide specific detail on
which parts of the authority their provision
covered. We have included this information in
column J when it was provided. Otherwise, we
have referred to ‘part of the local authority’ to
flag to map users that the whole local authority
area is not covered so that they can check the
specifics directly with providers.

It would be helpful to know the
specific areas in which support is
offered rather than the following
generic statements:

e Support to address wider issues
that may impact negatively on a
young person’s engagement with
ETE. This might include support

The intention was that more detailed
information would be captured in the open text
responses in columns AS, BS and BT. This has
been included when it was reported by
providers in the questionnaire.

© (

isBright | August 2016

Pack Page 92 6



Welsh Government

Mapping voluntary sector provision to support young people (14-18) to engage with ETE: report on phase 2

Feedback

with mental health, physical health

problems, disabilities, learning
difficulties/disabilities, housing,
substance misuse, offending
behaviour or family support.

e Support to engage with external
ETE provision or to become ready
to engage with ETE. This might
include support to develop
soft/employability skills, to identify
and access ETE opportunities,
mentoring and/or accompaniment
to ETE provision.

Response from Cordis Bright

There are a lot of regional or national
bodies on the map rather than local
provision. Are there plans to address
this?

As the mapping exercise was based primarily
on providers participating via the online
guestionnaire, the proportion of regional,
national and local providers included in the
draft maps was dictated by the overall
response to the questionnaire. Local providers
have been included if they participated and
previous entries for other known local providers
have been listed. If the Welsh Government is
happy for us to share the questionnaire
template with EPCs, they could use it in future
reviews of their provision maps in order to
obtain additional information from non-
participating providers (including local
providers).

If providers are regional and national,
there doesn’'t seem a way to identify if
the delivery is done locally or are
young people expected to travel out
of county to access the support.

It is true that this information cannot be
established from the current maps and would
need to be checked directly with providers.

The map is comprehensive, but as
discussed at the workshop to prevent
duplication of task and staff resource,
has the research examined and
compared the map to current LA
Information systems such as
DEWIS?

The proposed categories of information for use
in phase 2 of the mapping exercise have been
cross-checked against other key maps and
databases and are compatible with these.
Therefore information provided to local
authorities as a result of this mapping exercise
could be transferred to other directories/maps
at the local authorities’ discretion.

The mapping exercise has also incorporated
detail from existing local authority provision
maps, as these are understood to be the
primary local source of information for
professionals about provision to support to

©

Bright | August 2016

Pack Page 93 7



Welsh Government

Mapping voluntary sector provision to support young people (14-18) to engage with ETE: report on phase 2

Feedback

Response from Cordis Bright

enable young people to engage and progress
within ETE.

Spreadsheet entries for some
providers/programmes include very
limited information other than contact
details.

It is true that the level of information varies
across providers/programmes. The information
included in the map is taken primarily from
providers’ responses via the online
guestionnaire. Therefore if individual providers
did not respond to particular questions, we
were unable to include this information.
However, we hope that providing names and
contact details offers a starting point for EPCs
to approach these providers for more
information, if it would be useful to include them
in provision maps in future.

The spreadsheet has too many
columns and a lot of the information
is only relevant to EPCs, etc. It may
be worth just displaying the important
information (e.g. name, contact
details, provision description and
eligibility) and including the remaining
information as a backing document.

The spreadsheet is intended for use by EPCs
in the first instance. The intention is that the
information in the spreadsheet can be
incorporated into the existing local provision
maps that are circulated more widely to
professionals working in the local authority area
(either to expand on information already held
about providers/programmes or to introduce
new providers/programmes into the maps). The
format and level of detail in the existing
provision maps varies across local authorities.
However, based on the feedback at workshops,
we had understood that the majority of
stakeholders thought that the mapping exercise
should include this level of detail. We didn’t
include it as a backing document as we thought
it would be helpful to keep all the information
on one basic spreadsheet for those wishing to
copy data across to other
spreadsheets/databases.

It would be interesting to see how
many providers/programmes
currently deliver in the local authority
area and have staff based in the
area, and how many are stating they
can theoretically deliver within the
locality. Sometimes provision is not
actually in place unless there is a
cohort of young people to to justify
this provision running in an area.

It is true that this information cannot be
established from the current maps and at this
stage, EPCs/map users would need to check
this directly with providers. If a similar mapping
exercise was to be repeated in the future, it
would be very useful to include an additional
guestion to capture this information.

©

Bright | August 2016

Pack Page 94 8



Welsh Government
Mapping voluntary sector provision to support young people (14-18) to engage with ETE: report on phase 2

Feedback Response from Cordis Bright

It is not clear from the spreadsheet Some provision may indeed involve a cost and
whether provision is free or whether | the online questionnaire did not include specific

there are associated costs. Even guestions to determine this. EPCs/map users
though they are run through the would need to discuss this with providers. If a
voluntary sector, this doesn’t mean it | similar mapping exercise was to be repeated in
going to be free. the future, it would be very useful to include an

additional question to capture this information.

Suggestions for future analysis

The new and updated entries on local maps have been combined to provide a Wales-wide
map to share with the Welsh Government. The Welsh Government may find it useful to
analyse this Wales-wide map and/or the local provision maps to increase their
understanding of the voluntary sector provision included within the maps. For example,
the maps could be used to establish.

¢ The proportion of national, regional and local providers included in the maps.

e The proportion of providers working with young people of particular ages, or with
particular characteristics or common experiences.

e The proportion of different types of provision included within the maps (e.g. direct
delivery of ETE vs support to engage with ETE delivery).

e The coverage across Wales by different providers and types of provision.

¢ The reported activities, outputs, outcomes and progression routes of provision included
within the maps.

This type of analysis could be used as a way to profile voluntary sector provision to
support young people aged 14-18 to engage or to remain engaged in ETE. It could also
be used as a starting point to identify potential gaps and/or saturation within voluntary
sector provision to support these young people.

In addition, the previous entries on the local maps have been combined to create a
second Wales-wide map. This indicates all providers which featured on existing local
authority provision maps but either: a.) did not complete an online questionnaire at all or
b.) completed an online questionnaire but did not indicate that the provision covered all
local authority areas on whose existing maps they had previously featured. This provides
information about other providers with which it might be beneficial to liaise in the future to
request/check information in order to increase the profile of their provision.

© (

'sBright | August 2016 Pack Page 95 9



Mapping voluntary sector provision to

support young people aged 14-18 to
engage with education, training and
semployment (ETE)

Workshop with key stakeholders

Cardiff
28t April 2016 C

CordisBright




Introductions

Before we start we would like to find out...

* YOour name

-
®
0
Q
5
Y
Q
o
©
\l

The organisation you work for

Your role




Activity

11.00am

-
%xﬂ.l.lOam

T

&

g1.20am

(00]
11.30am

11.50am
12.05pm
1.00pm

Welcome and introductions
Purpose of the workshop

Aims/objectives of the research
Approach to the research

Summary of previous research by CWVYS

Group discussion: voluntary sector involvement in
implementation of YEPF — benefits, challenges and solutions

Key findings from analysis of existing provision maps
Small group discussions: how to approach mapping provision
Thank you and close




Purpose of the workshop

The purpose of the workshop is to:
* Provide you with details about the service mapping research,

Including:

— The background to the research.
-— Our planned approach.
%Explore the potential and scope of voluntary sector provision to
&support young people to engage or remain engaged with ETE.

8Discuss with you:
— The types of voluntary sector provision you feel should be included in local

provision maps.
— The range of information that should be included about these providers in

order to make the provision maps as useful as possible.
— The feasibility of obtaining this information from voluntary sector providers

and the best approach to involving them in the research.




Aims and objectives of the service b
mapping research (1)

The overarching objectives of the service mapping research are to:

«Raise the profile of voluntary sector provision within local authority
%provision maps by gathering detailed information about as many
grelevant voluntary sector services as possible.

00T

* Produce a map of voluntary sector provision for each local authority
and work with Engagement and Progression Coordinators (EPCs) to
“sense test” these maps to ensure they are practically useful.

» Support the implementation of the YEPF.




Aims and objectives of the service b
mapping research (2)

In order to achieve these objectives the research seeks to work with
EPCs and voluntary sector colleagues to:

« Understand the extent to which voluntary sector provision is already
Included in local provision maps.

'UUnderstand more about how colleagues believe voluntary sector

pr’OVISIOH can support the engagement of young people aged 14-18 in
£ETE, and use this information to determine the types of provision to
%include within local provision maps.

. Explore the range and type of information that would be practically
useful to professionals working within the Youth Engagement and
Progression Framework (YEPF).

* Identify individual services/projects for inclusion in the provision maps.

» Gather detailed information directly from providers of these
services/projects.




Approach to the research

Workshops with
EPCs and
voluntary sector
colleagues

Analysis of
existing provision
maps provided
by EPCs

Request for info
from voluntary
sector colleagues

20T abed »oed

Production of
scoping report
(mid-May)




Previous research by CWVYS (1)

Key findings:

« Voluntary youth work organisations have great potential to contribute
to the implementation of YEPF.

— Voluntary youth work organisations offer flexible and adaptable provision.

— Voluntary youth work organisations and EPCs felt that some voluntary sector
orgs have the staff, skills and rapport to fulfil the lead worker function.

€0T obed Yoed

— Voluntary youth work organisations can support the tracking of young people
through formal and informal ETE opportunities.

— E.g. 6 case studies of voluntary youth work organisations to illustrate the
range and scope of provision within the sector.




b
Previous research by CWVYS (2)

» There is a need for greater understanding of YEPF and the potential
contribution of voluntary sector.

U— There was a perception that YEPF and its provision was wholly delivered by
local authorities.

0T abed xoe

— There was a lack of awareness of YEPF by some voluntary youth work
organisations.

— There was a need for increased understanding amongst local authorities of
the skills, professionalism and range of provision offered by voluntary youth
work organisations.

» There is a gap within existing maps.

— National voluntary youth work organisations were under-represented in local
authority provision maps.




b
Previous research by CWVYS (3)

» There is demand to fill this gap.
— EPCs expressed a desire to ensure that the voluntary youth work sector was

represented in provision maps.
— Voluntary youth work organisations expressed a willingness to be more
involved in the implementation of the YEPF, and in the mapping exercise.

But...there is a lack of capacity to respond to this gap.
~— National voluntary youth work organisations lacked the capacity to complete

o 22 LA maps.
— They welcomed the opportunity to participate in a mapping exercise on an

all-Wales basis.

0T ab¥ed Moed

« CWVYS also produced a suggested template for gathering information
from voluntary youth work organisations.




Group discussion: voluntary sector b
iInvolvement in implementing YEPF

Key questions to consider:

«<\What are the benefits of including voluntary sector

%services/programmes In the implementation of YEPF?

QD

a— \What types of voluntary sector service contribute to supporting young people

5 to engage/remain engaged in ETE?
(o)}
— What specific roles can voluntary sector organisations take?

« How can we maximise the contribution of the voluntary sector to the
iImplementation of YEPF?

— What are the potential challenges to ensuring that voluntary sector providers
can maximise their contribution?

— What needs to be in place to overcome these challenges?




Analysis of existing provision maps: b
number of voluntary sector entries

70

64
49
45
37
34
31 31 30
21 20
17
15
10 10 9 9 6
7 7
5
111,
o i =

Local Authority

(2]
o

a1
o

N
o

Number of voluntary sector entries
o LQT 659d45>10‘8d




Analysis of existing provision maps: types b
of provider included

Type of provider

N UK-wide charity 150
;; Wales-wide charity 123
,G‘E Local charity 147
@ Local volunteering group 23
Local council for voluntary services 14
Social enterprise 12
Community Interest Company 5

Cooperative and Community Benefit Society 3



Analysis of existing provision maps: b
commonly-listed providers

Prince’s Trust 13
g\/lind Cymru 9
gRathbone 8
i@arnardo’s; CAIS; Hafal; Llamau; Shelter Cymru 7
QAction for Children; ARCH Futures; Carers Trust; Hafan; 6

NWREN; Riding for the disabled



Analysis of existing provision maps: types b
of service/programme included

The types of service/programme provided can be divided into three
categories:

Services/programmes directly offering ETE opportunities to young
people.

N 0TT abedbped

Services/programmes building young people’s soft skills to enable
them to engage/remain engaged with ETE opportunities or offering
additional support to enable them to engage (e.g. mentoring).

3. Services/programmes supporting a young person to address other
Issues which might be negatively impacting on their ability to
engage with ETE (e.g. mental health services, housing, family
support services, substance misuse services).




Analysis of existing provision maps: types b
of information included

Contact/referral Programme details | Financial Eligibility criteria
details information

Name of programme Description Current funding Age range
arrangements

Name of Accreditations Target tiers
g-@rganisation offered
c%Seneric contact Length, hours of Geographical area
Metails attendance, location covered
(9]

rSpecific contact Progression routes Specific target
Hletails (to refer) audiences

e T _




Group discussion: best approach to
mapping voluntary sector provision (1)

Group 1: What types of service/programme should be included?

We suggest that in order to be included within the maps a
é?ervice/programme should either:

§. Directly offer ETE opportunities to young people and/or;

g. Build young people’s soft skills to enable them to engage/remain
™~ engaged with ETE opportunities and/or;

3. Offer additional support to enable them to engage with ETE

opportunities.

In addition, we suggest that it should either:

1. Have funding in place for at least 12 months from the date the
mapping is undertaken and/or;

2. Have been running continuously for a minimum of two years at the
date when the mapping is undertaken.




Group discussion: best approach to b
mapping voluntary sector provision (2)

Groups 2 and 3: What types of information should be included?
Looking at the table on the next slide:

s Are there any additional categories that should be included to make
Sthe maps as useful as possible for professionals?
QD

Q
®

«Are there any categories that are not useful?

* How can we ensure that the information collated is standardised?




Contact/referral details | Programme details Financial information | Eligibility criteria

Name of programme —
free text

ame of organisation —
ree text

abrd>oed

KSeneric contact details —
'website and email
address

Specific contact details
(to refer) — name, email,
tel

Referral process — free
text

Type — sub-categories

Description - free text
with guidance

Accreditations offered —
yes/no then free text

Duration, hours of
attendance, location —
free text

Progression routes — tier
and type

Gains for the young
person

Language of delivery

Current funding
arrangements — funding
source and end date for
current funding

Availability for
commissioning — yes/no

When the service was
established - date

Age range — lower
and upper age limit

Target tiers

Geographical area
covered — sub-
categories

Specific target
audiences — sub-
categories



Group discussion: best approach to
mapping voluntary sector provision (4)

Group 4: Is it feasible and reasonable to request this level of detail from
voluntary sector providers?

« How can we minimise the burden for voluntary sector providers of
participating in the mapping exercise?

5
QD

%How many smaller, local providers will easily be able to provide
& Information across all of these categories?

GTT ®

« Should our approach be different for national and local providers? If
so, how should it differ?

« How can we make the best use of existing networks/umbrella
organisations/councils of voluntary services?

b




Thank you

Fhank you very much for your time and input.
-
QD

Elease provide any further feedback to Hannah Nickson:
rannahnickson@cordisbright.co.uk

020 7330 9170



mailto:hannahnickson@cordisbright.co.uk

CordisBright Limited

23/24 Smithfield Street, London EC1A 9LF

Telephone 0207330 9170
Email info@cordisbright.co.uk
Internet www.cordisbright.co.uk




Ag en d a Ite m 6 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 118



Ag en d a Ite m 7 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 144



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 8

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 147



	Agenda
	2 Scrutiny of Welsh Government draft budget 2017 - 18 - Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children
	3.1 Welsh Government response to the Committee of Advertising Practice consultation on introducing restrictions on the non-broadcast advertising of food and soft drinks to children,
	3.2 Letter to the Chair from NSPCC Cymru
	3.3 Letter from the Chair to Cabinet Secretary for Education - Education Improvement Grant: Gypsy, Roma and Traveller, and Minority Ethnic Children
	3.4 Letter from the Chair to the Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children - Statutory Advocacy Provision
	3.5 Correspondence from Council for Wales of Voluntary Youth Services (CWVYS) in relation to the Youth Work Inquiry
	6 Inquiry into Youth Work - Consideration of key issues paper
	7 Consideration of the Legislative Consent Memorandum on the Children and Social Work Bill
	8 Diamond Review: draft letter to Cabinet Secretary for Education



